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From: christopher@vyorkrealty.ca [christopher@yorkrealty.ca]

Sent: 11/18/2024 6:48:16 PM

To: koye.sanni@bmo.com

CC: alain.bagirakandi@bmo.com; matt@yorkrealty.ca; normand.girard@bmo.com; srinath.perera@bmo.com

BCC: normand.girard@bmo.mail.onmicrosoft.com

Subject: RE: BMTO6972210S Attached Image [PROTECT]

Attachments: LC rev SIERRA.pdf; LC - Sierra Notice of Non-renewal.pdf; LC Approval - email chain.pdf; LC Demand Letter Nov 18,
2024.pdf

This message was sent securely using Zix®

Thanks Koye. See attached demand letter with requested revisions.

Note, as I have shared all along, we were not provided with the original of the LC. I have included here the draft
version of the LC that we were provided along with the applicant's email confirmation of having approved the
LC for release (which the receipt of the original notice of non-renewal, also attached, confirms was in fact
issued as required to us as beneficiary.)

Thanks,
Christopher

--- Originally sent by koye.sanni@bmo.com on Nov 18, 2024 10:50 AM ---

This message was sent securely using Zix ©

Hi Christopher,

Please note the following discrepancies noted on the revised draft of the demand-

-copy of the letter of credit not presented.
-Beneficiary’s Certificate should be signed by the beneficiary.

-For consistency purpose you may consider adding currency under Standby Letter of Credit Amount to show as
CAD1,500,000.

-Remove authentication under Signature bloc.

Best regards,
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Koye Sanni

Service Specialist, Standby Letters of Credit & Guarantees

BMO Financial Group
Global Trade Operations
250 Yonge Street, 11" Floor
Toronto, Ontario

MS5B 217
koye.sanni@bmo.com

Tel: 416-263-0142

Please direct all New Standby & Guarantees application and amendment requests only to
BMOGTO.SBLCGTEENewApplications@bmo.com

From: christopher@yorkrealty.ca <christopher@yorkrealty.ca>

Sent: Friday, November 15, 2024 6:08 PM

To: Sanni, Koye <Koye.Sanni@bmo.com>

Cc: Girard, Normand <normand.girard@bmo.com>; matt@yorkrealty.ca; Bagirakandi, Alain
<Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com>; Perera, Srinath <SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com>
Subject: RE: BMT06972210S Attached Image [PROTECT]

This message was sent securely using Zix ®

Thank you for the review. Please see attached draft. If satisfactory, we will have it promptly executed and notarized.

Thanks,
Christopher

--- Originally sent by koye.sanni@bmo.com on Nov 15, 2024 3:21 PM ---

This message was sent securely using Zix ©

Hi Christopher,

Please see attached discrepancy advice per your demand.

Kindly review and make the required corrections.
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We recommend you send draft of the revised demand to us via email so we could review and confirm before
you send the final version.

Best regards,

Koye Sanni
Service Specialist, Standby Letters of Credit & Guarantees

BMO Financial Group
Global Trade Operations
250 Yonge Street, 11t Floor
Toronto, Ontario

M5B 2L7
koye.sanni@bmo.com

Tel: 416-263-0142

Please direct all New Standby & Guarantees application and amendment requests only to
BMOGTO.SBLCGTEENewApplications@bmo.com

From: Christopher Drobot <christopher@yorkrealty.ca>

Sent: Friday, November 15, 2024 12:21 PM

To: Bagirakandi, Alain <Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com>; Perera, Srinath <SRINATH.PERERA @bmo.com>
Cc: Sanni, Koye <Koye.Sanni@bmo.com>; Matt Woolsey <matt@yorkrealty.ca>; Girard, Normand
<normand.girard@bmo.com>

Subject: Re: BMT06972210S Attached Image

Hello,

Can you please provide an update on your fax system’s ability to receive transmissions?

Or, alternatively can you please confirm the email attachment of the letter which I have already provided will
suffice?

We've provided numerous confirmations that our faxes have gone through to the numbers provided. We're
simply looking for BMO to confirm receipt of the demand letter.

Thanks,
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Christopher Drobot Director, Capital Solutions
P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 C 780.699.3694

10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600
Edmonton , Alberta T5J 3N6

YORK REALTY ___  Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Bagirakandi, Alain < Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com >

Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2024 3:45:55 PM

To: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >; Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >
Cc: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >

Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hi Christopher,

We are currently investigating with our teams onsite and will revert to you as soon as possible.
Sorry for any inconvenience.

Regards

Alain Bagirakandi CDCS

Team Lead, Standby Letters of Credit and Guarantees
Bank of Montreal and BMO Bank N.A.

Global Trade Operations

250 Yonge St., 11th Floor, Toronto ON, M5B 2L.7
Tel: 416 598 6592 | Fax: 416 598 6075

alain.bagirakandi@bmo.com

Please direct all New Standby & Guarantees application and amendment requests only to BMO- Global Trade
Operations at BMOGTO.SBLCGTEENewApplications@bmo.com

From: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >

Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2024 5:25 PM

To: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >

Cc: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >; Bagirakandi, Alain < Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello all,
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Per below, I’ve attempted to fax multiple times to the numbers provided and continue to be told these haven’t
been received. I have verified that our fax machine is sending correctly.

Please confirm your receipt of the demand under BMTO6972210S, and, if still not received, please provide a
functioning fax number to which I can send the letter.

Thanks,

Christopher Drobot Director, Capital Solutions
P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 C 780.699.3694

10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600
Edmonton, Alberta T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY ___ Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Christopher Drobot

Sent: November 14, 2024 1:40 PM

To: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >

Cc: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >; Bagirakandi, Alain < Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello Srinath,

For certainty, I have also verified that our fax machine is sending correctly (by sending one to myself,
confirmation of which receipt is attached).

I have now tried sending FROM 780-426-7783 TO 416-598-6075 & 416-598-6071, as well as FROM 780-699-
3694 TO 416-598-6075 & 416-598-6071

Perhaps, if you can try sending me one from your machine at either 780-426-7783 or 780-699-3694 I can
confirm what number your machine is at, and that it’s connecting?

Thanks,

Christopher Drobot Director, Capital Solutions
P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 C 780.699.3694

10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600
Edmonton, Alberta T5] 3N6



125

YORK REALTY ___ Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >

Sent: November 14, 2024 1:06 PM

To: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >

Cc: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >; Bagirakandi, Alain < Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello Christopher

Unfortunately we did not received the fax sent t: 416 598 6071
That why want to refax to 416 598 6075
Thanks

Regards

Srinath Perera | Service Specialist-Standby&Gtees
BMO Financial Group | Global Trade Operations
416 598 6095 | (f) 416 598 6075

srinath.perera@bmo.com

Please direct all New Standby & Guarantees application and amendment
requests only to BMO- Global Trade Operations at
BMOGTO.SBLCGTEENewApplications@bmo.com

From: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >

Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2024 2:55 PM

To: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >

Cc: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >; Bagirakandi, Alain < Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello Srinath, yesterday you gave me 1-416-598-6071, which I faxed to and present to you below the
confirmation of transaction successfully going through
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I will try again, but I’m confused as to the issues we’re experiencing here when our fax machine is providing
confirmations of having sent, and we’ve now sent to multiple numbers you and your team have provided (from
the official letterhead, the numbers provided by email, and more). I’'m going to try again now, and will also
send from a different fax machine for certainty.

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

Sent: November 14, 2024 12:47 PM

To: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >

Cc: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >; Bagirakandi, Alain < Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hi Christopher,

Not received the you sent to 416 598 6076
Pls fax to: 416 598 6075

Sorry for inconvenience caused

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

Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2024 2:38 PM

To: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >

Cc: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >; Bagirakandi, Alain < Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello Srinath (or others on the team). Can you now confirm receipt of the fax?

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

Sent: November 13, 2024 2:53 PM

To: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >

Cc: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >; Bagirakandi, Alain < Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello,

I have faxed to the number below, confirmation attached.

Thanks,

127
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

YORK REALTY __  Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >

Sent: November 13, 2024 2:38 PM

To: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >

Cc: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >; Bagirakandi, Alain < Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello Christopher,

We require The Certificate of Amalgamation or Articles of Amalgamation (what you attached
is a Registration Statement).

We have not received the Fax.
Pls fax : 416 598 6071 or 1 877 801 7787

And call to confirm

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
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From: Christopher Drobot <crm

Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2024 12:33 PM

To: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >

Cc: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

See attached amalgamation registration statement per your request

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

Sent: November 13, 2024 10:16 AM

To: 'Sanni, Koye' < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >

Cc: 'Perera, Srinath' < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello Koye,

The fax number you provided says it is “not available in your area”. Can you please confirm the number?

In the meantime, please see the attached transfer & draw request, and corporate summary detailing the vertical
amalgamation of the initial addressee.

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

Sent: November 6, 2024 10:53 AM

To: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >

Cc: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello Koye,

Checking in on this question

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

Sent: November 1, 2024 2:32 PM

To: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >

Cc: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Thanks Koye, and I understand. Unfortunately, we were never provided with the original (it was retained by the
applicant, who failed to deliver according to their obligations under our lease)

Based on this, can a new one be issued?

Christopher Drobot Director, Capital Solutions

] 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 C 780.699.3694
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10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton, Alberta T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY ___ Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >

Sent: November 1, 2024 11:24 AM

To: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >
Cc: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

You don't often get email from koye.sanni@bmo.com . Learn why this is important

Hi Christopher,

The original LC and the draw documents according to the terms of the LC must be presented to make a claim
on the LC.

Original non-renewal notice is not a requirement to draw on the LC.

Best regards,

Koye Sanni
Service Specialist, Standby Letters of Credit & Guarantees

BMO Financial Group
Global Trade Operations
250 Yonge Street, 11" Floor
Toronto, Ontario

M5B 217
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
Sent: Friday, November 1, 2024 1:13 PM
To: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >
Cc: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image

Hello Koye,

Are you able to respond to my initial question to Niriksh?

The applicant may yet have possession of the original, but has not at any time released it to us (per the
obligation within their lease to do so).

I am planning to circulate a draw request, and given our possession of the original notice of non-renewal, is this
adequate to satisfy BMO to our rightful claim to the funds available under this L/C?

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

Sent: November 1, 2024 9:36 AM

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
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Please find below requirements for draw requests as provided in the LC:

The LC requires that the original LC is submitted for any drawing. In presentation is by fax and for a full and
final drawing, the original LC must be returned.

Please note that the L.C expires on November 19 2024 and as such, you draw request should be sent to us as
soon as possible (preferably on or before Monday, November 11 2024).

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
Sent: Thursday, October 31, 2024 4:35 PM

To: Shetty, Niriksh < Niriksh.Shetty@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO069722110S Attached Image

Hello Niriksh,

Appreciate the chat earlier this week. The applicant may yet have possession of the original, but has not at any
time released it to us (per the obligation within their lease to do so).
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

] 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 ¢ 780.699.3694

10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton, Alberta T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY ___ Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Christopher Drobot

Sent: October 28, 2024 4:09 PM

To: Shetty, Niriksh < Niriksh.Shetty@bmo.com >
Cc: Cheema, Sunny < sunnyl.cheema@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMTO069722110S Attached Image

Thanks Niriksh, I’ll investigate — appreciate the prompt reply!

Christopher Drobot Director, Capital Solutions

P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 ¢ 780.699.3694

10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton, Alberta T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY ___ Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Shetty, Niriksh < Niriksh.Shetty@bmo.com >
Sent: October 28, 2024 4:05 PM

To: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >
Cc: Cheema, Sunny < sunnyl.cheema@bmo.com >
Subject: BMTO069722110S Attached Image

Hi Christopher,
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It was nice talking to you.

As per our telephonic conversation, the LC issued in November 2023 seems to be sent to the applicant.

Please check if the applicant if they hold the original LC in their custody.

Thanks & Regards
Niriksh Shetty

Sr.Service Representative, Standby Letters of Credit and Guarantees

BMO Financial Group

Global Trade Operations
250 Yonge Street, 11t Floor
Toronto, Ontario

M5B 217
Niriksh.Shetty@bmo.com
Tel: 416-947-8756

Please direct all New Standby & Guarantees application and amendment requests only to BMOGTO.SBLCGTEENewApplications@bmo.com

PLEASE ALWAYS QUOTE OUR LC NUMBER IN THE SUBJECT LINE .

From: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >

Sent: Monday, October 28, 2024 5:42 PM

To: Cheema, Sunny < sunnyl.cheema@bmo.com >; Shetty, Niriksh < Niriksh.Shetty@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: Attached Image

Thanks Sunny!

Niriksh, when would be a good time for a call?

Thanks,

Christopher Drobot Director, Capital Solutions

P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 ¢ 780.699.3694

10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600



136
Edmonton, Alberta T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY ___ Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Cheema, Sunny < sunnyl.cheema@bmo.com >
Sent: October 28, 2024 3:26 PM

To: Shetty, Niriksh < Niriksh.Shetty@bmo.com >

Cc: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >
Subject: FW: Attached Image

Hi Niriksh,

Christopher reached out on the attached notice of non-renewal for the Letter of Credit.

Are you please able to connect with him on this as he has some questions.

Thanks,

Sunny Cheema

Associate Director
Income Property Finance, BMO Commercial Banking

sunny1.cheema@bmo.com
M 403-200-6472

525 8th Ave SW | 12th Floor | Calgary | AB | T2P 1G1

From: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >
Sent: Monday, October 28, 2024 3:21 PM

To: Cheema, Sunny < sunnyl.cheema@bmo.com >
Subject: Fw: Attached Image

External Email: Use caution with links and attachments. | Courriel externe : Faites preuve de prudence en ce qui a trait aux liens et aux piéces jointes.

Hello Sunny,

Do you have Nirkish Shetty's contact details that you can share? Attached is the notice of non-renewal we
received.

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

From: canon(@yorkrealty.ca < canon@yorkrealty.ca >
Sent: Friday, October 18, 2024 10:11:46 AM

To: Christopher Drobot < christopher@yorkrealty.ca >
Subject: Attached Image

This message was secured by Zix ® .

This message was secured by Zix ® .

This message was secured by Zix ® .

This message was secured by Zix®.
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e Bank of Montreal

BMO ‘ 250 Yohge St 11 Floor
Toronto, ON MBB 2L7
Tel, 416 508-8112
Fax 416 582-8076
SWIFT, BOFMCAT2

lrrevocable
Standby Letter of Credit No.; BMTOBG722108

+++ORAFT+++

ISSUE DATE: SEPTEMBER XXXX, 2023
EXPIRY DATE: SEPTEMBER XXXX, 2024

BENEFICIARY:

SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARK INC,,
#1600, 10303 JASPER AVENUE NW,
EDMONTON, AB T&J 3NG&

APPLICANT.

EASTERN MEAT SOLUTIONS INC ON BEHALF OF SIERRA REALTY CALGARY CORPORATION.
5090 EXPLORER DRIVE,

SUITE 203, MISSISSAUGA,

ONTARIO, LW 4TS

AMOUNT. ONE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND 0/100's CANADIAN DOLLARS
{CAD1,500,000.00).

WE HEREBY AUTHORIZE YOU TO DRAW ON BANK OF MONTREAL, GLOBAL TRADE
OPERATIONS, 250 YONGE STREET, 11TH FLOOR, TORONTO, ON M5B 217, FOR THE ACCOUNT
OF EASTERN MEAT SOLUTIONS INC. ON BEHALF OF SIERRA REALTY CALGARY
CORPORATION UP TO AN AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF ONE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND
AND 00/100's CANADIAN DOLLARS (CAD1,500,000.00), AVAILABLE WITH OURSELVES, ON
DEMAND, BY PAYMENT, AGAINST PRESENTATION OF THE DOCUMENT(S) DETAILED HEREIN.

1. BENEFICIARY'S CERTIFICATE, ON ITS LETTERHEAD, COMPLETED, DATED AND
PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL STATING:

"THE TENANT SIERRA REALTY CALGARY CORPORATION HAS FAILED TO FULFILL TS
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO BETWEEN SIERRA
REALTY CALGARY CORPORATION AS TENANT AND SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARK INC AS
LANDLORD FOR THE LEASE PREMISES DESCRIBED AS PLAN 1910413 BLOCK 1 LOT 1 DATED
MARCH 10, 2023, AS MAY BE AMENDED, SUPPLEMENTED OR RESTATED FROM TIME TO TIME.
THEREFORE, WE ARE DRAWING FOR CAD, ..., UNDER LETTER OF CREDIT NO
BMTOEY722105. PLEASE WIRE PROCEEDS TO! L "

BWTOER722108 Fage i of b
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aes Bank of Montreal

BMO ‘

2. THE ORIGINAL OF THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT FOR QUR ENDORSEMENT AND WILL
BE RETURNED TO YOU UNLESS FULLY EXHAUSTED.

PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAWING(S) UNDER THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT ARE
RESTRICTED TO US. WE AGREE WITH YOU TO HONOR YOUR DRAWING(S) PRESENTED IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THIS CREDIT WHEN RECEIVED AT BANK OF MONTREAL,
GLOBAL TRADE OPERATIONS, 250 YONGE STREET, 11TH FLOOR, TORONTO, ON M5B 2L7, ON
OR BEFORE THE THEN CURRENT EXPIRATION DATE.

DRAWINGS BY FACSIMILE ARE PERMITTED. SUCH DRAWINGS (8} SHALL BE MADE TO
FACSIMILE NUMBER 416-598-6075 (EACH SUCH DRAWING, A "FAX DRAWING™ PROVIDED,
HOWEVER, THAT A FAX DRAWING WILL NOT BE EFFECTIVELY PRESENTED UNTIL YOU
CONFIRM BY TELEPHONE QUR RECEIPT OF SUCH FAX DRAWING BY CALLING US AT
TELEPHONE NUMBER 416-588-6112. [F YOU PRESENT A FAX DRAWING UNDER THIG LETTER
OF CREDIT YOU DO NOT NEED TO PRESENT THE ORIGINAL OF ANY DRAWING DOCUMENTS,
AND IF WE RECEIVE ANY SUCH ORIGINAL DRAWING DOCUMENTS THEY WILL NOT BE
EXAMINED BY US. IN THE EVENT OF A FULL AND FINAL DRAWING THE ORIGINAL STANDBY
LETTER OF CREDIT MUST BE RETURNED TO UE BY OVERNIGHT COURIER.

THE AMOUNT OF THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT MAY ONLY BE REDUCED BY DRAWINGS
ENDORSED HEREON OR AS ADVISED BY NOTICE IN WRITING TO US BY YOU.

TERMS OF THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT WILL CONTINUE UP TO SEPTEMBER XXXX,
2024 AND WILL EXPIRE AT OUR COUNTERS ON THAT DATE AND YOU MAY CALL FOR
PAYMENT OF THE FULL AMOUNT OUTSTANDING UNDER THIS LETTER OF CREDIT AT ANY
TIME PRIOR TO THAT DATE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

T1S A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT 1T SHALL BE DEEMED TOBE
AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR ONE YEAR FROM THE PRESENT OR
ANY FUTURE EXPIRY DATE HEREDF, UNLESS ATLEAST THIRTY (30) DAYS PRIOR TO SUCH
EXPIRY DATE, WE SEND YOU NOTICE IN WRITING BY REGISTERED MAIL OR COURIER, THAT
WE ELECT NOT TO CONSIDER THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT TC BE RENEWABLE FOR AN
ADDITIONAL PERIOD. UPON RECEIPT BY YOU OF SUCH NOTICE, YOU MAY DRAW
HEREUNDER BY MEANS OF YOUR SIGNED DEMAND FOR PAYMENT CERTIFYING THAT AT THE
AMOUNT DRAWN WILL BE RETAINED AND USED BY YOU TO MEET OBLIGATIONS INCURRED
OR TO BE INCURRED UNDER THE LEASE AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 10, 2023 BETWEEN
SIERRA REALTY CALGARY CORPORATION AS TENANT AND SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARK
INCAS LANDLORD FOR THE LEASE PREMISES DESCRIBED AL PLAN 1910413 BLOCK 1 LOT 1
AS MAY BE AMENDED, SUPPLEMENTED OR RESTATED FROM TIME TO TIME.

PARTIAL DRAWINGS ARE PERMITTED,

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS TRANSFERABLE ONE OR MORE TIMES, BUT IN EACH INSTANCE
ONLY IN THE FULL AMOUNT AVAILABLE TO BE DRAWN UNDER THIS LETTER OF CREDIT AT

BWTOER722108 Fage2of b
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aes Bank of Montreal

BMO

THE TIME OF SUCH TRANSFER. ANY SUCH TRANSFER MAY BE EFFECTED ONLY THROUGH
BANK OF MONTREAL, AND ONLY UPON PRESENTATION TO US AT OUR PRESENTATION
OFFICE SPECIFIED HEREIN OF A DULY EXECUTED TRANSFER REQUEST IN THE FORM
ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT "A" WITH INSTRUCTIONS THEREIN IN BRACKETS COMPLIED
WITH, TOGETHER WITH THE ORIGINAL OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT AND AMENDMENT(S}
THERETO. EACH TRANSFER SHALL BE EVIDENCED BY QUR ENDORSEMENT ON THE
REVERSE OF THE ORIGINAL OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT, AND WE SHALL DELIVER SUCH
ORIGINAL TO THE TRANSFEREE. THE TRANBFEREE'S NAME SHALL AUTOMATICALLY BE
SUBSTITUTED FOR THAT OF THE BENEFICIARY WHEREVER SUCH BENEFICIARY'S NAME
APPEARS WITHIN THIS LETTER OF CREDIT. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER TERMS HEREIN,
A TRANSFER MUBST COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, INCLUDING INTERNATIONAL
TRADE SANCTIONS AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING REGULATIONS.

THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT S SUBJECT TO THE INTERNATIONAL STANDBY
PRACTICES 1908 {"ISPA8"), INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, PUBLICATION NO. 580.
BANK OF MONTREAL

AUTHORIZED SIGNING OFFICER

BWTOER722108 Fagedof b
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THIS I8 AN INTEGRAL PART OF STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT NO. BMTOG69722108 AND MUST
BE ATTACHED THERETO.

EXHIBIT "A" - REQUEST FORM FOR FULL TRANSFER

{TRANSFER FORM TO BE PREPARED ON BENEFICIARY'S COMPANY LETTERHEAD)
DATE:

AMOUNT

[SSUING BANK'S REFERENCE: BMTO82722108

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, THE UNDERGIGNED BENEFICIARY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY
TRANSFERS TO:

NAME OF TRANGFEREE:
ADDRESS OF TRANSFEREE:
OTHER TRANSFEREE INFORMATION:

ALL RIGHTS OF THE UNDERSIGNED BENEFICIARY TG DRAW UNDER THE ABOVE LETTER OF
CREDIT UP TO IT8 AVAILABLE AMOUNT AS OF THE DATE OF THIS TRANSFER, AS SBHOWN
ABOVE.

BY THIS TRANSFER, ALL RIGHTS OF THE UNDERSIGNED BENEFICIARY IN SUCH STANDBY
LETTER OF CREDIT ARE TRANSFERRED TO THE TRANSFEREE, AND THE TRANSFEREE
SHALL HAVE THE SOLE RIGHTS AS BENEFICIARY THEREOF, INCLUDING SOLE RIGHTS
RELATING TO ANY AMENDMENTS NOW EXISTING OR HEREAFTER MADE. ALL AMENDMENTS
ARE TO BE ADVISED DIRECTLY TO THE TRANSFEREE WITHOUT NECESSITY OF ANY
CONSENT OR NOTICE TO THE UNDERSIGNED BENEFICIARY.

THE ORIGINAL OF THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT 18 RETURNED HEREWITH, TOGETHER
WITH ANY AND ALL AMEMDMENTS, AND WE ASK YOU TO TRANSFER THE LETTER OF CREDIT
AND FORWARD IT DIRECTLY TO THE TRANSFEREE WITH YOUR NOTICE OF TRANGSFER.

WE CERTIFY THAT THE TRANSFEREE HAS ACQUIRED BENEFICIARY'S RIGHTS AND
OBLIGATIONS IN THE UNDERLYING RELATIONSHIR

ENCLOSED IS5 OUR REMITTANCE OF CAD335.00 BEING TRANSFER FEE OF CADZ00.00 PLUS
CAD3S.00 COURIER FEE IN PAYMENT OF YOUR TRANSFER COMMISSION, AND IN ADDITION

BWTOER722108 Faged of b
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THERETO WE AGREE TQ PAY YOU ON DEMAND ANY EXPENSES WHICH MAY BE INCURRED
BY YOU IN CONNECTION WITH THIS TRANSFER.

SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATION:

BENEFICIARY'S NAME AB PER LIC:
AUTHORISED SIGNATURE (8) OF BENEFICIARY:
SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATED BY:

(BANK OR NOTARY AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE NAME AND TITLE)

BWTOER722108 Fagabof b
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ew Bank of Montreal
BMO 9 250 Yonge St., 11th Floor

Toronto, ON M5B 2L7
Tel: 416 598-6112
Fax: 416 598-6076

SWIFT: BOFMCAT2

SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARK INC., October 09, 2024
#1600, 10303 JASPER AVENUE NW,
EDMONTON, AB T5J 3N6 Canada

Re: Our Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit No.: BMTO6972210S
Applicant: EASTERN MEAT SOLUTIONS INC

Dear Customer,

"THIS IS A NON-RENEWAL NOTICE.

We wish to inform you that our abovementioned Letter of Credit will not be renewed by us for an additional one-
year period; therefare, it will expire at our counters on November 19, 2024.

Should you consent, however, to the cancellation of this Letter of Credit prior to its present expiration date, please
return the original Letter of Credit instrument together with any subsequent amendment(s) directly to us to your
complete discharge.

Should you need to make a claim under our Letter of Credit please ensure that your claim is presented to us no
later than November 19, 2024.

APPLICANT:
EASTERN MEAT SOLUTIONS INC.,ON BEHALF OF SIERRA REALTY CALGARY CORPORATION.

Unless otherwise instructed herein, all correspondence and enquiries regarding this transaction should be
directed to our Customer Service Centre at the above address, telephone: 416-598-6112. Please indicate our
reference number in all your correspondence or telephone enquiries.

Regards,

H SHETTY
il NIRIKS

Authorised Signature(s)

BMT069722108 Page 1 of 1
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Christopher Drobot

From: Christopher Drobot <christopher@yorkrealty.ca>
Sent: October 18, 2024 4:22 PM

To: Jonathan Calvert

Subject: FW: LC

External Sender, proceed with caution

Christopher Drobot Director, Capital Solutions

P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 C 780.699.3694
10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton, Alberta T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Angela Walker <angela@yorkrealty.ca>

Sent: October 18, 2024 4:18 PM

To: Christopher Drobot <christopher@yorkrealty.ca>
Subject: FW: LC

Angela Walker Executive Assistant

P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2017 D 780.421.4002 C 780.278.4493
10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton, AB T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Ramesh Nedadur <Ramesh.Nedadur@sierrascs.com>

Sent: Friday, November 3, 2023 3:13 PM

To: Matt Woolsey <matt@yorkrealty.ca>; Rob Vanden Broek <Rob.VandenBroek@sierrascs.com>
Subject: RE: LC

| have sent our acceptance to the last draft.
They will issue LC after internal clearances. Thx

Ramesh Nedadur | President and COO

Sierra Supply Chain Services

a division of Eastern Meat Solutions Inc.

5090 Explorer Drive, Suite 203, Mississauga, Ontario. L4W $X6
T: 416.252.2791 x 241 M: 416-471-2519 F: 416-252-2544

E: ramesh.nedadur@sierrascs.com

www.slerrasupplychain.com

From: Matt Woolsey <matt@vyorkrealty.ca>
Sent: Friday, November 3, 2023 5:07 PM
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To: Ramesh Nedadur <Ramesh.Nedadur@sierrascs.com>; Rob Vanden Broek <Rob.VandenBroek@sierrascs.com>
Subject: Re: LC

[EXTERNAL EMAIL: Proceed with caution]
Hi Ramesh,

Hope you are doing well.
Any update on your end for this?

Thanks,
Matt

Matt Woolsey President

P 780.421.4000 D 780.508.0104 C 780.906.6321
10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton, AB T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY Property Solutions Simplified ™

From: Ramesh Nedadur <Ramesh.Nedadur@sierrascs.com>

Date: Wednesday, October 25, 2023 at 7:13 PM

To: Matt Woolsey <matt@yorkrealty.ca>, Rob Vanden Broek <Rob.VandenBroek@sierrascs.com>
Subject: LC

Bank remined us that we need to get back to them on LC terms and get ok from York. Can | request to look into that .
Thx

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

E: ramesh.nedadur(@sierrascs.com

www.sierrasupplychain.com
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,rj WOOLSEY
|| EQUITIES INC.

Bank of Montreal
Global Trade Operations
250 Yonge St., 11" Floor
Toronto, ON, M5B 2L7
Tel: 416 598-6112

Fax: 416 598-6076

Re: Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit No.: BMT06972210S
Applicant: Eastern Meat Solutions Inc., on behalf of Sierra Realty Calgary Corporation

Date: November 18, 2024
RE: Standby Letter of Credit Amount: CAD1,500,000.00

Issuing bank’s reference: BMT06972210S

The tenant Sierra Realty Calgary Corporation has failed to fulfill its obligations pursuant to the Lease
Agreement entered into between Sierra Realty Calgary Corporation as Tenant and Sierra Winds Business Park
Inc., as Landlord for the Lease Premises described as Plan 1910413 Block 1 Lot 1 dated March 10, 2023, as
may be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time. Therefore, we are drawing for
CAD1,495,000.00, under letter of credit No. BMTO6972210S. Please Wire proceeds to:

Receiving Bank: Bank of Montreal Head Office, Montreal SWIFT BIC code: BOFMCAM2

Beneficiary Bank (field 57): Bank of Montreal, 10185 - 101 ST NW, Edmonton, AB, T5J 0H4

Canadian Clearing Code: CC0001

Beneficiary (field 59): Account Number - 00141947724; Woolsey Equities Inc., Canada, 10303 Jasper
Avenue NW, Suite 1600, Edmonton, AB, T5J 3N6

Signature authentication: R/M (»-L:sc, V1% Jrcouo»j»rnd

Beneficiary: WOOLSEY EQUITIES INC.

Authorised Signature(s) of Beneficiary:

PROPERTY SOLUTIONS SIMPLIFIED™ T 780.421.4000

Suite 1600 10303 Jasper Ave info@yorkrealty.ca
Edmonton, AB | T5] 3N6 yorkrealty.ca
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From: Sanni, Koye [Koye.Sanni@bmo.com]

Sent: 11/18/2024 8:03:34 PM

To: christopher@yorkrealty.ca

CC: Bagirakandi, Alain [Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com]; matt@yorkrealty.ca; Girard, Normand
[normand.girard@bmo.com]; Perera, Srinath [SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com]

Subject: RE: BMTO6972210S Attached Image [PROTECT]

Hi Christopher,

Kindly present the claim via fax.

Best regards,

Koye Sanni
Service Specialist, Standby Letters of Credit & Guarantees

BMO Financial Group
Global Trade Operations
250 Yonge Street, 11'" Floor
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

Sent: Monday, November 18, 2024 1:48 PM

To: Sanni, Koye <Koye.Sanni@bmo.com>

Cc: Bagirakandi, Alain <Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com>; matt@yorkrealty.ca; Girard, Normand
<normand.girard@bmo.com>; Perera, Srinath <SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com>

Subject: RE: BMT06972210S Attached Image [PROTECT]

This message was sent securely using Zix®

Thanks Koye. See attached demand letter with requested revisions.
Note, as | have shared all along, we were not provided with the original of the LC. | have included here the draft version of the LC

that we were provided along with the applicant's email confirmation of having approved the LC for release (which the receipt of the
original notice of non-renewal, also attached, confirms was in fact issued as required to us as beneficiary.)

Thanks,
Christopher

--- Originally sent by koye.sanni@bmo.com on Nov 18,2024 10:50 AM ---
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

From: christopher@vyorkrealty.ca <christopher@vyorkrealty.ca>

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

We recommend you send draft of the revised demand to us via email so we could review and confirm before you send
the final version.

Best regards,

Koye Sanni

Service Specialist, Standby Letters of Credit & Guarantees

BMO Financial Group
Global Trade Operations
250 Yonge Street, 11 Floor
Toronto, Ontario

M5B 217
koye.sanni@bmo.com

Tel: 416-263-0142

Please direct all New Standby & Guarantees application and amendment requests only to
BMOGTO.SBLCGTEENewApplications@bmo.com
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From: Christopher Drobot <christopher @yorkrealty.ca>

Sent: Friday, November 15, 2024 12:21 PM

To: Bagirakandi, Alain <Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com>; Perera, Srinath <SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com>
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
Or, alternatively can you please confirm the email attachment of the letter which | have already provided will suffice?

We've provided numerous confirmations that our faxes have gone through to the numbers provided. We're simply
looking for BMO to confirm receipt of the demand letter.

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

Subject: RE: BMT06972210S Attached Image

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

250 Yonge St., 11th Floor, Toronto ON, M5B 2L7

Tel: 416 598 6592 | Fax: 416 598 6075

alain.bagirakandi@bmo.com

Please direct all New Standby & Guarantees application and amendment requests only to BMO- Global Trade Operations
at BMOGTO.SBLCGTEENewApplications@bmo.com

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

Per below, I’ve attempted to fax multiple times to the numbers provided and continue to be told these haven’t been
received. I have verified that our fax machine is sending correctly.

Please confirm your receipt of the demand under BMTO6972210S, and, if still not received, please provide a functioning
fax number to which I can send the letter.

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
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For certainty, I have also verified that our fax machine is sending correctly (by sending one to myself, confirmation of
which receipt is attached).

I have now tried sending FROM 780-426-7783 TO 416-598-6075 & 416-598-6071, as well as FROM 780-699-3694 TO
416-598-6075 & 416-598-6071

Perhaps, if you can try sending me one from your machine at either 780-426-7783 or 780-699-3694 1 can confirm what
number your machine is at, and that it’s connecting?

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

To: Christopher Drobot < christopher@vyorkrealty.ca >

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

Hello Srinath, yesterday you gave me 1-416-598-6071, which I faxed to and present to you below the confirmation of
transaction successfully going through

I will try again, but I’'m confused as to the issues we’re experiencing here when our fax machine is providing
confirmations of having sent, and we’ve now sent to multiple numbers you and your team have provided (from the official
letterhead, the numbers provided by email, and more). I’'m going to try again now, and will also send from a different fax
machine for certainty.

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



155
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

YORK REALTY __ Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: Christopher Drobot

Sent: November 1, 2024 2:32 PM

To: Sanni, Koye < Koye.Sanni@bmo.com >

Cc: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com >
Subject: RE: BMT06972210S Attached Image

Thanks Koye, and I understand. Unfortunately, we were never provided with the original (it was retained by the applicant,
who failed to deliver according to their obligations under our lease)
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

The original LC and the draw documents according to the terms of the LC must be presented to make a claim on the LC.

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

The applicant may yet have possession of the original, but has not at any time released it to us (per the obligation within
their lease to do so).

I am planning to circulate a draw request, and given our possession of the original notice of non-renewal, is this adequate
to satisfy BMO to our rightful claim to the funds available under this L/C?

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

The LC requires that the original LC is submitted for any drawing. In presentation is by fax and for a full and final
drawing, the original LC must be returned.

Please note that the LC expires on November 19 2024 and as such, you draw request should be sent to us as soon as
possible (preferably on or before Monday, November 11 2024).

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
Subject: RE: BMT069722110S Attached Image

Hello Niriksh,
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Appreciate the chat earlier this week. The applicant may yet have possession of the original, but has not at any time
released it to us (per the obligation within their lease to do so).

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
Subject: BMT069722110S Attached Image
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

sunnyl.cheema@bmo.com
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

Do you have Nirkish Shetty's contact details that you can share? Attached is the notice of non-renewal we received.

Thanks,
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Christopher Drobot Director, Capital Solutions
P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 C 780.699.3694
10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton , Alberta T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY __  Property Solutions Simplified ®

From: canon@yorkrealty.ca < canon@vyorkrealty.ca >
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

Sent: 11/18/2024 8:27:06 PM

To: koye.sanni@bmo.com

CC: matt@yorkrealty.ca; normand.girard@bmo.com; srinath.perera@bmo.com; alain.bagirakandi@bmo.com
BCC: Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.mail.onmicrosoft.com

Subject: RE: BMTO6972210S Attached Image [PROTECT]

Attachments: Fax confirmation 6076.pdf; Fax confirmation 6075.pdf; Fax confirmation 607 1.pdf

This message was sent securely using Zix®

Hello Koye,

Given the earlier challenges we had in having faxes come through, I have submitted to the three separate fax
lines you earlier provided:

1-416-598-6071

1-416-598-6075

1-416-598-6076

Fax confirmations are attached.

Thanks,
Christopher

--- Originally sent by koye.sanni@bmo.com on Nov 18, 2024 1:04 PM ---

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
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kove.sanni@bmo.com
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
<normand.girard@bmo.com>; Perera, Srinath <SRINATH.PERERA @bmo.com>

Subject: RE: BMT069722108S Attached Image [PROTECT]

This message was sent securely using Zix ®

Thanks Koye. See attached demand letter with requested revisions.

Note, as I have shared all along, we were not provided with the original of the LC. I have included here the draft version of the LC that
we were provided along with the applicant’s email confirmation of having approved the LC for release (which the receipt of the
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



169

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




170
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
P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 p 825.480.4523 ¢ 780.699.3694

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



From: Christopher Drobot Fax: +17806993694 To: Fax: +14165986076 Page: 1 of 8 11/18)2024 1:23 PM

185

WOOLSEY
EQUITIES INC.

Banl of Montreal

Globat Trade Operations
250 Yonge St., 11" Floor
Toronto, ON, M5B 217
Tel: 416 588-6112

Fax: 416 598-6076

Aei irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit No.: BMTO69722105
Applicant: Eastern Meat Solutions Inc., on behalf of Sierra Realty Calgary Corporation

Date: Movember 18, 2024
RE: Standby Letter of Credit Amount: CAD1,500,000.00

Issuing bank's reference: BMTOB9722108

The tenant Sierra Realty Calgary Corporation has fatled to fulfill its obligations pursuant to the Lease
Agreement entered into between Sierra Realty Calgary Corporation as Tenant and Sierra Winds Business Park
tnc., as Landlord for the Lease Premises described as Plan 1810413 Block 1 Lot 1 dated March 10, 2023, as
may be amended, supplemented or restated from time 1o time. Therefore, we are drawing for
CAD1,485,000.00, under letter of credit No. BMTOB9722108. Please Wire proceeds to:

Heceiving Banlc Bank of Montreal Head Office, Montreat SWIFT BIC code: BOFMCAM2

g 71 Bank of Montreal, 10185 - 101 ST NW, Edmondon, AB, T5) 0H4

tasring Code: CCO001

iary (field 58); Account Number - 00141847724; Woolsey Equities Inc., Canada, 10303 Jasper
Avenue NW, Suite 1600, Edmonton, AB, T5) 3N6

Signature authentication: E’)m« CAL:ae, \fP .lﬂdﬂrl?ﬂd

Beneficiary: WOOLSEY EQUITIES INC.
e i

Authorised Signature(s) of Beneficiary: ‘M ,{/,,{?{

o

Wﬂw

PROPERTY SOLUTIONS SIMPLIFIELR™ T 7804214000

Buite 1600 10303 Jasper Ave info@voriresalty.ca
Edmonton, AB | T5] 3N6 vorkraalty.oa



From: Christopher Drobot Fax: +17806993694 To: Fax: +14165986076 Page: 2 of 8 11/18)2024 1:23 PM

186
e Bank of Montreal
BMO @ 250 Yorige St., 114 Floor

Toranto, ON MBB 21T
Tel 416 5088112
Feapt- 416 58B-HBO76
SWEFT BOFMCATZ

Irrsvocable
Standby Letter of Credit No.: BMTO69722108

+++{) Rﬁ?'ﬁ»-}—@

ISSUE DATE: SEPTEMBER XXXX, 2023
EXPIRY DATE: SEPTEMBER XXXX, 2024

BENEFICIARY: _ o
SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARKING.
#1800, 10303 JASPER AVENUE NW,
EDMONTON, AB 764 3NG-

APPLICANT:

EASTERN MEAT SOLUTIONS INC.,ON BEHALF OF SIERRA REALTY CALGARY GORPORATION.
5090 EXPLORER DRIVE,

SUITE 203, MISSISSAUGA,

ONTARIO, L4W 4T9

AMOUNT: ONE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND 00/100'S CANADIAN DOLLARS
(GAD1,500,000.00).

WE HEREBY AUTHORIZE YOU TO DRAW ON BANK OF MONTREAL, GLOBAL TRADE
OPERATIONS, 250 YONGE STREET, 11TH FLOOR, TORONTO, ON M5B 2L7, FOR THE ACCOUNT
OF EASTERN MEAT SOLUTIONS INC. ON BEHALF OF SIERRA REALTY CALGARY
CORPORATION UP TO AN AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF ONE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND
AND00/100'S CANADIAN DOLLARS (CAD1,500,000.00), AVAILABLE WITH OURSELVES, ON
DEMAND, BY PAYMENT, AGAINST P ESENTAT?QB& OF THE DOCUMENT(S) .@ETAE_LED'HEREEN,.

1. BENEFICIARY'S CERTIFICATE, ON ITS LETTERHEAD, COMPLETED, DATED AND
PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL STATING:

"THE TENANT SIERRA REALTY CALGARY CORPORATION HAS FAILED TO FULFILL ITS
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO BETWEEN SIERRA
REALTY CALGARY CORPORATION AS TENANT AND SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARK INCAS
LANDLORD FOR THE LEASE PREMISES DESCRIBED AS PLAN 1910413 BLOCK 1 LOT 1 DATED
MARCH 10, 2023, AS MAY BE AMENDED, SUPPLEMENTED OR RESTATED FROM TIME TO TIME.
THEREFORE, WE ARE DRAWING FOR CAD.. E}NDER LETTER OF CREDIT NO
BMTD@Q?QQ‘IC}S PLEASE WIRE PROCEEDS TO7 it Y e e
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2. THE ORIGINAL OF THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT FOR OUR ENDORSEMENT AND WILL
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
GLOBAL TRADE OPERATIONS, 250 YONGE STREET, 11TH FLOCR, TORONTO, ON M58 2L7, ON

OR BEFORE THE THEN CURRENT EXPIRATICN DATE.

DRAWINGS BY FACSIMILE ARE PERMITTED. SUCH DRAWINGS (S) SHALL BE MADE TO
FACSIMILE NUMBER 416-548-6075 (EACH SUCH DRAWING, A "FAX DRAWING”): PROVIDED,
HOWEVER, THAT A FAX DRAWING WILL NOT BE EFFECTIVELY PRESENTED UNTIL YOU
CONFIRM BY TELEPHONE OUR RECEIPT OF SUCH FAX DRAWING BY CALLING US AT
TELEPHONE NUMBER 416-598-6112. IF YOU PRESENT A FAX DRAWING UNDER THIS LETTER
OF CREDIT YOU DO NOT NEED TO PRESENT THE ORIGINAL OF ANY DRAWING DOCUMENTS,
AND IF WE RECEIVE ANY SUCH ORIGINAL DRAWING DOCUMENTS THEY WILL NOT BE
EXAMINED BY US. IN THE EVENT OF A FULL AND FINAL DRAWING THE ORIGINAL STANDBY
LETTER OF CREDIT MUST BE RETURNED TO US BY OVERNIGHT COURIER.

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

ITIS A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT IT SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE
AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR ONE YEAR FROM THE PRESENT OR
ANY FUTURE EXPIRY DATE HEREQOF, UNLESS ATLEAST THIRTY {30) DAYS PRIOR TO SUCH
EXFIRY DATE, WE SEND YOU NOTICE IN WRITING BY REGISTERED MAIL OR COURIER, THAT
WE ELECT NOT TO GONSIDER THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT TO BE RENEWABLE FOR AN
ADDITIONAL PERIOD. UPON RECEIPT BY YOU OF SUCH NOTICE, YOU MAY DRAW
HEREUNDER BY MEANS OF YOUR SIGNED DEMAND FOR PAYMENT CERTIFYING THAT AT THE
ANMOUNT DRAWN WILL BE RETAINED AND USED BY YOU TO MEET OBLIGATIONS INCURRED
ORTOBE INCURRED UNDER THE LEASE AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 10, 2023 BETWEEN
SIERRA REALTY CALGARY CORPORATION AS TENANT AND SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARK
INC.,AS LANDLORD FOR THE LEASE PREMISES DESCRIBED AS PLAN 1910413 BLOCK 1 LOT 1
AS MAY BE AMENDED, SUPPLEMENTED OR RESTATED FROM TIME TO TIME,

PARTIAL DRAWINGS ARE PERMITTED.

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
ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT "A", WITH INSTRUCTIONS THEREIN IN BRACKETS COMPLIED
WITH, TOGETHER WITH THE ORIGINAL OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT AND AMENDMENT(S)
THERETO. EACH TRANSFER SHALL BE EVIDENCED BY QUR ENDORSEMENT ON THE
REVERSE OF THE ORIGINAL OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT, AND WE SHALL DELIVER SUCH
ORIGINAL TO THE TRANSFEREE. THE TRANSFEREE'S NAME SHALL AUTOMATICALLY BE
SUBSTITUTED FOR THAT OF THE BENEFICIARY WHEREVER SUCH BENEFICIARY'S NAME
APPEARS WITHIN THIS LETTER OF CREDIT. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER TERMS HEREIN
A TRANSFER MUST COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, INCLUDING INTERNATIONAL
TRADE SANCTIONS AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING REGULATIONS,

THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBJECT TO THE INTERNATIONAL STANDBY
PRACTICES 1998 (“ISP98"), INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE., PUBLICATION NO. 590,
BANK OF MONTREAL

AUTHORIZED SIGNING GFFICER
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THIS IS AN INTEGRAL PART OF STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT NO. BMTO68722108 AND MUST
BE ATTACHED THERETG.

EXHIBIT *A" - REQUEST FORM FOR FULL TRANSFER

(TRANSFER FORM TO BE PREPARED ON BENEFIGIARY'S COMPANY LETTERHEAD)
DATE:

AMOUNT:

ISSUING BANK'S REFERENCE: BMTO69722108

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, THE UNDERSIGNED BENEFICIARY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY
TRANSFERS TO:

NAME OF TRANSFEREE:
ADDRESS OF TRANSFEREE:
OTHER TRANSFEREE INFORMATION:

ALL RIGHTS OF THE UNDERSIGNED BENEFICIARY TO DRAW UNDER THE ABOVE LETTER OF
CREDIT UP TO ITS AVAILABLE AMOUNT AS OF THE DATE OF THIS TRANSFER; AS SHOWN
ABOVE.

BY THIS TRANSFER, ALL RIGHTS OF THE UNDERSIGNED BENEFICIARY IN SUCH STANDBY
LETTER OF CREDIT ARE TRANSFERRED TO THE TRANSFEREE, AND THE TRANSFEREE
SHALL HAVE THE SOLE RIGHTS AS BENEFICIARY THEREOF, iNCLUDING SOLE RIGHTS
RELATING TO ANY AMENDMENTS NOW EXISTING OR HEREAFTER MADE. ALL AMENDMENTS
ARE TO BE ADVISED DIRECTLY TO THE TRANSFEREE WITHOUT NECESSITY OF ANY
CONSENT OR NOTICE TO THE UNDERSIGNED BENEFICIARY.

THE ORIGINAL OF THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT IS RETURNED HEREWITH, TOGETHER
YWITH ANY AND ALL AMENDMENTS, AND WE ASK YOU TO TRANSFER THE LETTER OF CREDIT
AND FORWARD IT DIRECTLY TO THE TRANSFEREE WITH YOUR NOTICE OF TRANSFER.

WE CERTIFY THAT THE TRANSFEREE HAS ACQUIRED BENEFICIARY'S RIGHTSAND
OBLIGATIONS IN THE UNDERLYING RELATIONSHIF.

ENCLOSED IS OUR REMITTANGE OF CAD335.00 BEING TRANSFER FEE OF CAD300.00 PLUS
CAD35.00 COURIER FEE IN PAYMENT OF YOUR TRANSFER COMMISSION, AND IN ADDITION
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THERETO WE AGREE TO PAY YOU -ON DEMAND ANY EXPENSES WHICH MAY BE INCURRED
BY YOU IN CONNECTION WITH THIS TRANSFER.

SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATION:

BENEFICIARY'S NAME AS PER L/C:
AUTHORISED SIGNATURE (S) OF BENEFICIARY:
SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATED BY:

(BANK OR NOTARY AUTHORIZED BIGNATURE NAME AND TITLE):
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Christoeher Drobot

From: Christopher Drobot <christopher@yorkrealty.ca>
Sent: October 18, 2024 4:22 PM

To: Jonathan Calvert

Subject: Fww: LC

ed with cautior

Christopher Drobat  Director, Capital Solutions

P 7804214000 Ext. 2010 B 825.480.4523 € 780.699.3694
10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton, Alberta T5] 3N6&

YORK REALTY Property Solutions Simpiified ©

From: Angela Walker <angela@vyorkrealty.ca>

Sent: October 18, 2024 4:18 PM

To: Christopher Drobot <christopher@yorkrealty.ca>
Subject: FW: LC

Angely Walker Execulive Assistant

PO780.421.4000 B2 2017 B 780.421.4002 € 780.278.4493
10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton, AB T5} 3N6

YORK REALTY Froperty Soltions Simplitied ©

From: Ramesh Nedadur <Ramesh Nedadur@sierrases.com>
Sent: Friday, November 3, 2023 3:13 PM

To: Matt Woolsey <mati@yorkrealty.ca>; Rob Vanden Broek <Rob. VandenBroek@siarrascs.com>
Subject: RE: LC

| have sent our acceptance to the last draft.
They will issue LC after internal clearances. Thx

Ramesh Nedadur | President and COO

Sierra Supply Chain Services

a division of Hastern Meat Solutions Ine.

5090 Explover Drive, Suife 203, Mississauga, Ontario. LAW $X6
T 416.252.2791 % 241 M:416-471-2319 F: 416-252-2544

B ramesh nedadwr@siernrases.com

www.sierrasupplychain.com

From: Matt Woolsey <matt@yorkrealty.ca>
Sent: Friday, November 3, 2023 5:07 PM
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To: Ramesh Nedadur <Ramesh.Nedadur@slerrascs.com>; Rob Vanden Broek <Rob VandenBrosk@sierrascs.coms
Subject: Re: ILC

[EXTERNAL EMAIL: Proceed with caution]
Hi Ramaesh,

Hope you are doing well.
Any update on your end for this?

Thanks,
Matt

Malt Woolsey President

P 7804214000 0 780,508.0104 € 780.906.6321
10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

Edmonton, AB T5J 3N6

YORK REALTY Fropenly Sofulions Simpiitied ™

From: Ramesh Nedadur <Ramesh.Nedadur@sierrascs.com>

Date: Wednesday, October 25, 2023 at 7:13 PM

To: Matt Woolsey <matt@vorkreaity.ca>, Rob Vanden Broek <Rob.VandenBrosek@sierrascs.com>
Subject: LC

Bank remined us that we need 1o get back to them on LC terms and get ok from York. Can | reguest to look into that .
Thx

Ramesh Nedadur § President and COO0

Sierra Supply Chain Seyvices

a division of Hastern Meat Sclutions Inc.

5090 Explorer Drive, Suite 203, Mississauga, Ontario. LAW §X6
T:416.252.2791 x 241 M: 416-471-2519 F: 416-252-2544

E: ramesh.nedadum@sierrases.com

www.sierrasupplvehain.com
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

DMTOEST221038 Page 30 &
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

DMTOEST221038 Paged ot
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

DMTOEST221038 Page 5ot o
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

DMTOEST221038 Page 115
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ane Bank of Montreal

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

DMTOEST221038 Page 2015



From: Christopher Drobot Fax: +17806993694 To: Fax: +14165986071 Page: 4 0of 8 11/18)2024 1:21 PM

204

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
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From: Bagirakandi, Alain [Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com]

Sent: 11/19/2024 6:03:49 PM

To: christopher@yorkrealty.ca

cC: matt@yorkrealty.ca; Girard, Normand [normand.girard@bmo.com]; Perera, Srinath [SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com];
Sanni, Koye [Koye.Sanni@bmo.com]

Subject: BMTO06972210S Attached Image [PROTECT]

Attachments: REVISED NOTICE OF DISCREPANCY.pdf

Hi Christopher,

Further to your revised presentation made on November 18, 2024 (Initial presentation made on November 14, 2024),
see attached our notice of discrepancy.

We noticed that Word “authentication” is not applicable in the box for the Beneficiary’s Signature. We understand that -
-------- is a “Signature” who signed under “the “Beneficiary’s Authorized Signature”.

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

Sent: Monday, November 18, 2024 3:27 PM

To: Sanni, Koye <Koye.Sanni@bmo.com>

Cc: matt@yorkrealty.ca; Girard, Normand <normand.girard@bmo.com>; Perera, Srinath
<SRINATH.PERERA@bmo.com>; Bagirakandi, Alain <Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com>
Subject: RE: BMT06972210S Attached Image [PROTECT]

This message was sent securely using Zix®

Hello Koye,

Given the earlier challenges we had in having faxes come through, | have submitted to the three separate fax lines you earlier
provided:

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

Do you have Nirkish Shetty's contact details that you can share? Attached is the notice of hon-renewal we received.

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



229

Bank of Montreal

250 Yonge 56, 11th Floor
Toronto, OM MEEB 2L7
Tl 418 5086112

Fax: 418 588-8078
BWIFT BOFMCATZ

SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARK INC., MNovember 19, 2024
#1600, 10303 JASPER AVENUE NW,
EDMONTON, AB 754 3NE Canads

Ra: Ouwr Refarence Slandby Letler of Credit No. BMTOBR7 23103 Claim Mumber 3

Standby Letter of Cradit Number BMTOBO722108 ‘issued by’ Bank of Montres!
Claim Amount: CAD 1,485 000.00

Clairm Date: November 14, 2024

Applicant: EASTERN MEAT SOLUTIONS INC

We advise that the claim o Pay Only relating 1o the above mentioned frarsaction has been rejecied due in the
following reasonisy

1. 20PY OF THE LETTER OF CREDIT NOT PRESENTED

RETURN TO: Bandk of Montreal, 250 Yonge 51, 11th Floor, Toronto, ON MEEB 2U7, Canada
Bensficiary's Instrustions:

From: SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARK INC.

Your Referancs: BMTOB0722108
Oy Drawing for) CADT 495,000,006

{1 Corrected documents snclosed herawith
{1 Pleasse oblain applicant’s payment authorization.
{ ) Please return doouments o us at the following address..

Authorized signglurs

signahure

Mame/Tithe

Diate:

Unless otherwise instrucisd hersin, all coresspondencs and srquiriss regarding this ransaction should be

diractad to our Customer Service Centre al the above address, islephone: 418-588-8112. Pleass indicals our
reference number in all yvouwr correspondence or telephong enguiries.

This document s computer-genarated, and requires no signalure,

BMTOBRTZ2109 Fage 1 of 2
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Bank of Montreal

BRTOBOT 2108 Fage 2ot 2
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From: matt@vyorkrealty.ca [matt@yorkrealty.ca]

Sent: 11/19/2024 7:40:57 PM

To: christopher@yorkrealty.ca; alain.bagirakandi@bmo.com

CC: normand.girard@bmo.com; koye.sanni@bmo.com; srinath.perera@bmo.com
BCC: Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.mail.onmicrosoft.com

Subject: RE: BMTO6972210S Attached Image [PROTECT]

Attachments: Lease_to_Sierra_(03.10.2023)_-_signed_by_Purchaser_(002) (3).pdf

This message was sent securely using Zix®

BMO Team;

Our lease agreement required that our Tenant provide the Landlord with a security deposit paid by way of a
letter of credit within 30-days of mutual execution of the Lease (see s. 6 in attached executed lease). We have
previously established the connection between ourselves as successor to the Landlord (Woolsey Equities) and
the Tenant (Sierra Realty (Calgary) Corporation).

Further, in section 10 of the lease, when the Tenant becomes, or threatens to become insolvent or seek creditor
protection, said security deposit belongs to the landlord.

Per section 10 of the fully executed lease, "a ll rights and remedies of the Landlord in connection with the Lease
are cumulative and, where

applicable, shall survive the early termination of this Lease or the expiration of the Term of this Lease".

While we, as Landlord, were not provided with an original or copy of the letter of credit, the letter of credit was

to be provided and was created by the Tenant for our benefit to protect against the eventuality of the current
situation.

We will correct the letter, per your instructions, and await your feedback.

Thanks,
Matt

--- Originally sent by alain.bagirakandi@bmo.com on Nov 19, 2024 11:05 AM ---

This message was sent securely using Zix ©

Hi Christopher,

Further to your revised presentation made on November 18, 2024 (Initial presentation made on November 14,
2024), see attached our notice of discrepancy.

We noticed that Word “authentication” is not applicable in the box for the Beneficiary’s Signature. We
understand that --------- is a “Signature” who signed under “the “Beneficiary’s Authorized Signature”.
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

Sent: Monday, November 18,2024 3:27 PM

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

Given the earlier challenges we had in having faxes come through, I have submitted to the three separate fax lines you earlier
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

Sent: Monday, November 18,2024 1:48 PM

To: Sanni, Koye <Koye.Sanni@bmo.com>

Cc: Bagirakandi, Alain <Alain.Bagirakandi@bmo.com>; matt@yorkrealty.ca; Girard, Normand
<normand.girard@bmo.com>; Perera, Srinath <SRINATH.PERERA @bmo.com>

Subject: RE: BMTO06972210S Attached Image [PROTECT]

This message was sent securely using Zix ®

Thanks Koye. See attached demand letter with requested revisions.

Note, as I have shared all along, we were not provided with the original of the LC. I have included here the draft version of the LC that
we were provided along with the applicant's email confirmation of having approved the LC for release (which the receipt of the
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




236

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
the official letterhead, the numbers provided by email, and more). I’m going to try again now, and will also
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




240
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

From: Perera, Srinath < SRINATH.PERERA{@bmo.com >

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
P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523

10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600
Edmonton, Alberta T5] 3N6

YORK REALTY Property Solutions Simplified

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
P 780.421.4000 Ext. 2010 D 825.480.4523 ¢

10303 Jasper Avenue, Suite 1600

C 780.699.3694

780.699.3694
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
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LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made as of March 10, 2023 (the “Lease”)

BETWEEN:

SIERRA WINDS BUSINESS PARK INC.
(hereinafter called the “Landlord”)
#1600, 10303 Jasper Avenue NW
Edmonton, AB T5J 3N6

Tel: 780.421.4000

Email: info@yorkrealty.ca
-and-

SIERRA REALTY (CALGARY) CORPORATION
(hereinafter called the “Tenant”)

Suite 203, 5090 Explorer Drive

Mississauga, ON L4W 4T9

Tel: 416.252.2791

Email: legal@sierrascs.com

IN CONSIDERATION of the rent and the covenants herein contained to be performed by the Landlord and
the Tenant, the parties agree as follows:

1.

LEASE

The Tenant leases from the Landlord and the Landlord leases to the Tenant the Leased Premises
(as defined in Section 2 below), for the Term (as defined in Section 3 below) and upon the covenants,
provisions, and conditions of this Lease.

PROPERTY AND LEASED PREMISES

The Landlord is, or is entitled to become, the registered owner of those lands legally described in
Schedule “A” attached hereto (the “Lands”). The Landlord is constructing a building (the “Building”)
located on a portion of the Lands in the approximate location shown on Schedule “A” attached hereto
(the “Parcel”). The Lands, the Building, any future building(s) constructed on the Lands and all other
improvements located upon the Lands are collectively referred to herein as the “Property”.

The Landlord may cause certain solar energy systems to be installed on the Property (the “Solar
Array”). If a Solar Array is installed on the Property, the Landlord and Tenant will enter into an
agreement amending this Lease or a separate solar agreement with respect to the Solar Array.

The “Leased Premises” shall mean the Building, comprising 350,311 square feet, more or less (the
“Floor Area of the Leased Premises”), located on the Parcel.

TERM

To have and to hold the Leased Premises for a term (the “Term”) of Twenty (20) years commencing
on the latest of: (a) April 1, 2024; (b) the day following Substantial Completion Date for the entire
Building (or the date that Substantial Completion would have occurred but for Tenant Delay(s));
and (c) the expiry of the last running Fixturing Period (the “Commencement Date”) and expiring on
the last day of the month that is 20 years after the Commencement Date, and which is estimated to
be March 31, 2044 (the “Expiry Date”), as may be adjusted pursuant to Schedule “C” or
Schedule “D”.

BASIC RENT

The basic rental rates will be determined based on the Basic Rent Calculation set out in Schedule “G”
hereto plus the Rent Escalation Amount (if any) set out in Schedule “G”.

The Tenant shall pay without any variation, set-off, or deduction whatsoever, payable in advance on
the first day of each month during the Term basic rent as follows:

(a) For the first five years of the Term, the Initial Per Annum Basic Rent calculated pursuant to
Schedule “G” plus the Rent Escalation Amount (if any) set out in Schedule “G”, payable in
equal, consecutive monthly instalments; and

(b) From and after the Sixth (6) anniversary of the Commencement Date through and until
the end of the Term, for each year commencing on an anniversary of the Commencement
Date and expiring on the day immediately prior to the next following anniversary of the
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Commencement Date, the per annum Basic Rent shall be equal to (i) the per annum Basic
Rent (excluding the Rent Escalation Amount) payable for the immediately preceding lease
year, plus an increase of 2.00%, and (ii) the Rent Escalation Amount (if any) set out in
Schedule “G”,

hereinafter (collectively, the “Basic Rent”). Once the Initial Per Annum Basic Rent and the Rent
Escalation Amount have been calculated, the Landlord and Tenant will both sign an acknowledgment
that confirms the Basic Rent payable by the Tenant for each year of the Term.

All amounts herein are rounding excepted and exclusive of GST. For any period of less than one
(1) month, the Basic Rent payable for that period shall be calculated on a per diem basis at a rate
equal to 1/365 of the Basic Rent payable for the year.

5. ADDITIONAL RENT

51 The Tenant shall pay, without any variation, set-off, or deduction whatsoever, all costs,
charges and expenses of or relating to the maintenance, repair, replacement, operation and
management of the Leased Premises (excluding, for greater certainty, the structural assets)
(collectively, the “Operating Costs”), and the Tenant shall pay all such costs directly wherever
possible (except with respect to the Landlord’s insurance and real property taxes), or reimburse the
Landlord, on demand, for any such costs the Landlord is required to pay. Operating Costs include,
without duplication, but are not limited to, the following:

(a) all real property, local improvement and school taxes, rates and charges, charged, levied, or
rated by any competent authority in respect of the Leased Premises and the cost of all
appeals against increased assessments for the purpose of such taxes, rates, and charges;

(b) all costs, charges and expenses of owning, maintaining, operating, repairing, replacing,
administering, supervising, managing and insuring (including liability and loss of rental
insurance and all deductibles payable by the Landlord) the Leased Premises including,
without limitation, maintenance, cleaning, operation, and replacement of the wiring, piping,
lighting and plumbing fixtures, sprinkler, and heating, ventilating and air conditioning
equipment, and the cost of maintenance, repairs or replacements made by the Landlord to
the Leased Premises, if any, excluding (i) repairs and replacements to the extent the cost is
recovered by the Landlord pursuant to any construction warranties; (ii) replacements of major
capital assets, except in accordance with subsection 5(e) below; and (iii) structural repairs;

For the purposes of this Lease:

(i) “‘major capital assets” shall include the roof membrane, sprinkler, heating,
ventilating and air conditioning equipment, evaporators, refrigeration units, fans,
variable frequency drives, electrical panel and glycol pumps, and such other capital
assets that are determined in accordance with generally acceptable accounting
principles or practices as applied by the Landlord;

(i) “structural assets” shall only include the structural elements of the roof (excluding
the roof membrane), perimeter load bearing walls, terminal wall, terminal panels and
below roof deck ceiling panels, steel (other than racking), foundations and the
structural subfloors of the Building;

(iii “structural repairs” shall only include repairs and replacements to the structural
assets, except those repairs and replacements caused by the Tenant's negligence
or wilful misconduct;

(c) the cost of gas, oil, power, electricity, water, sewer, communications and any other utilities
and services which are not separately metered, together with the direct cost of administering
such utility services;

(d) the cost of cleaning, snow removal, litter removal, landscaping, servicing, maintaining,
operating, repairing, replacing, supervising and policing the Leased Premises and any
common areas of the Property (including the parking areas) and the costs of all supplies,
labour, wages and fees relating thereto;

(e) costs of the following items:

(i) replacements of major capital assets that, in the opinion of a professional qualified
to opine on any such major capital asset, are reasonably required;

(i) providing, installing, modifying, and upgrading energy conservation equipment and
systems, life safety and emergency response systems, materials and procedures
and telecommunication systems and equipment that have been approved by the
Tenant, acting reasonably;

2
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(iii) making alterations, replacements or additions to the Building intended to reduce the
costs relating to operating the Building, improving the operation of the Building and
the systems, facilities and equipment serving the Building, or maintaining their
operation that have been approved by the Tenant, acting reasonably;

provided that such costs shall be amortized and not be charged fully in the fiscal year in which
they are incurred, where so determined in accordance with generally acceptable accounting
principles or practices as applied by the Landlord. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence,
to the extent any costs that would otherwise be amortized pursuant to this paragraph arose
or were accelerated by (i) the negligence or willful misconduct of the Tenant or its employees,
agents, contractors, assigns, subtenants or invitees (individually and collectively with Tenant
a “Tenant Party” or “Tenant Parties”), or (ii) the Tenant’s failure to comply with its obligations
set out in this Lease, then such capital expenditures need not be amortized and shall be
immediately payable by Tenant upon demand in accordance with the provisions contained
herein. For certainty, the amortization of the cost of any item amortized pursuant to this
subsection 5(e) shall be amortized over the useful term of the item with interest to be
calculated annually and paid monthly on the unamortized costs at a rate equal to the Yield
as defined in Schedule “G” to this Lease, which will be included in Operating Costs;

0] any value-added tax, business transfer tax, goods and services tax or similar multi-stage
sales tax from time-to-time imposed by any governmental authority in Canada; and

(9) a management fee equal to 1% of the Basic Rent payable by the Tenant.

5.2 QOperating Costs shall not include the following:

(a) the Landlord's debt service costs;

(b) the Landlord’s original cost of acquisition and construction of the Building and Leased
Premises;

(c) costs associated with the operations of the Landlord's head office;

(d) costs of any structural repairs;

(e) any expenditures by the Landlord that under generally accepted accounting principles are

properly considered capital expenditures except in accordance with Section 5.1(e);

) costs incurred as a result of the Landlord’s failure to comply with any applicable laws and
legal requirements as of the Commencement Date.

53 The Tenant shall, during the Term, promptly pay all of the Operating Costs which are
provided to and billed, charged, levied or rated directly to the Tenant in respect of the Leased
Premises, together with the cost of servicing, maintaining and replacing all equipment and machinery
providing such services.

54 The Landlord will estimate the monthly Additional Rent payable by the Tenant for the next
lease year, and the Tenant shall pay the monthly estimate of the Additional Rent on the first day of
each month during the lease year concurrent with the payment of Basic Rent. The Landlord will
provide the Tenant a statement of the actual Operating Costs for the previous lease year (the
“Statement”) within 120 days following the end of each lease year (for clarity, the Landlord has the
right to adopt a fiscal lease year other than on a calendar basis). Within Thirty (30) days following
delivery of the Statement, the Landlord or Tenant (as the case may be) will make the appropriate
adjusting payment as required in the Statement. The Tenant may inspect the records kept by the
Landlord relating to the Statement at the Landlord’s business office at any reasonable time upon Ten
(10) Business Days’ prior written notice but only so long as such notice by the Tenant is provided to
the Landlord no later than Ninety (90) days following delivery of the Statement to the Tenant. In no
event shall such inspection or planned inspection permit the Tenant to delay payment of Rent or
Additional Rent or any other amounts owing by the Tenant to the Landlord pursuant to the terms of
this Lease.

55 The Tenant acknowledges and agrees that it is intended that this Lease shall be a totally
carefree, absolutely net Lease for the Landlord except as specifically otherwise set out in this Lease.
The Landlord shall not be responsible during the Term or any renewal for any costs of any nature
whatsoever respecting the Leased Premises and the Tenant shall pay without any variation,
deduction or set-off whatsoever, all costs relating to the Leased Premises, the Operating Costs as
set-out above (which are not paid directly by the Tenant), and any other amounts owing by the Tenant
to the Landlord pursuant to the terms of this Lease (collectively, the “Additional Rent”) and the
Tenant covenants with the Landlord to make such payments as Rent. The term “Rent” as used in
this Lease shall include all Basic Rent and Additional Rent.
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5.6 The Tenant shall pay to the Landlord an amount equal to any and all goods and services
taxes, sales taxes, value added taxes, or any other taxes imposed on the Landlord with respect to
Rent payable by the Tenant to the Landlord under this Lease. Despite any other section in this Lease,
the amount payable by the Tenant under this paragraph shall be deemed not to be Rent but the
Landlord shall have all of the same remedies for and rights of recovery of such amounts as it has for
recovery of Rent under this Lease. Notwithstanding the above, the Tenant shall not be responsible
for any taxes on the income, profits or other taxes that are personal to the Landlord.

6. SECURITY DEPOSIT

Within Thirty (30) days following mutual execution of this Lease, the Tenant shall provide the Landlord
with a security deposit equal to two monthly installments of Basic Rent based on the Initial Per Annum
Basic Rent (the “Security Deposit’). Half of the Security Deposit is to be applied to the first months’
Basic Rent due under this Lease and the balance held without interest by the Landlord as security for
the performance by the Tenant of its obligations under this Lease. The aforesaid sum includes goods
and services tax.

The Landlord agrees that the Security Deposit may be paid by way of a letter of credit in the amount
of the Security Deposit as estimated at the date of mutual execution of this Lease (the “Letter of
Credit”), provided that the Letter of Credit satisfies the below terms and conditions and is replaced
with a cash deposit in the amount equal to the Security Deposit prior to the Commencement Date:

(a) The Letter of Credit shall be an unconditional standby letter of credit issued by a Schedule 1
Canadian bank, irrevocable, transferable by the Landlord, allow for partial and multiple draw(s)
by facsimile or overnight delivery in lieu of personal presentation and be, in form and substance,
satisfactory to the Landlord, in its sole discretion;

(b

~

The Letter of Credit shall have a minimum initial term of one (1) year, provide for automatic
renewal not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration thereof and provide for written notice
from the issuer to the Landlord no less than thirty (30) days prior to termination (and upon receipt
of any such notice, the Landlord will have the right to draw upon the Letter of Credit for the full
amount, which amount shall be held as the Security Deposit in accordance with this Lease);

(c) Inthe event of a Default pursuant to subsections 10(c) or (d) of this Lease, the Landlord shall be
at liberty to immediately and without notice to the Tenant present the Letter of Credit to the issuer
and draw the entire amount of the Letter of Credit and retain the Security Deposit for its own use
absolutely.

The Landlord, in its discretion, may draw upon the Letter of Credit and apply any portion or all of the
Security Deposit prior to or during the Term, or any renewal thereof, on account of any sums
outstanding or owing by the Tenant under the Lease, including, without limitation, Basic Rent or
Additional Rent or such sums resulting from the Tenant’s breach or breaches of this Lease. The
Tenant, on demand, will provide the Landlord with an additional or replacement Letter of Credit or
pay such further money to the Landlord so that the Landlord is always holding, as a security deposit,
an amount equal to 50% of the Security Deposit. The balance of the Security Deposit shall be
returned to the Tenant within Thirty (30) days following the expiry of this Lease, provided that the
Tenant: (i) vacates the Leased Premises in good and substantial repair and condition, reasonable
wear and tear excepted, by no later than the Expiry Date of this Lease; (ii) leaves the Leased
Premises in accordance with the Tenant’s obligations under the terms of this Lease; and (iii) has paid
all amounts due to the Landlord under this Lease.

7. PERMITTED USE

The Leased Premises shall be used and occupied only for the purpose of a full-service variable
temperature controlled cold storage operation including cold storage, distribution, processing and
packaging and ancillary dry storage and warehousing and for no other purpose whatsoever (the
“Permitted Use”). The Tenant shall actively and continuously operate its business from and utilize
the whole of the Leased Premises throughout the whole of the Term for such purpose in a reputable
and diligent manner during the normal business hours and in accordance with rules and regulations
designated or established by the Landlord from time-to-time. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Tenant shall not (and shall not permit any Tenant Party) to overload the floors of the
Leased Premises.

8. OVERHOLDING

If the Tenant shall continue to occupy the Leased Premises after expiration of the Term, or any
renewal thereof, without any further written agreement, the Tenant shall be a monthly tenant only at
a monthly Rent equal to One Hundred Twenty-Five percent (125%) of the Rent payable in the last
month of the Term and on all of the same terms and conditions as are herein contained excepting as
to the Expiry Date.
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INTEREST AND LATE PAYMENT FEES

The Tenant shall pay to the Landlord interest on all monies and arrears at the rate of Six (6%) per
cent per annum in excess of the prime rate of interest from time to time charged by the Canadian
Imperial Bank of Commerce, Main Branch, Edmonton, Alberta, calculated and compounded monthly
not in advance. For any Rent that is in arrears Five (5) Business Days or more, a fee of $1,000.00
may be charged to the Tenant as Additional Rent for each month or months that the Rent is in arrears.

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

In the event that:

(a) the Tenant fails to pay any Rent or any other amount owing under this Lease (including,
without limitation, the Rent payable during the Early Occupancy Period), whether or not
demanded by the Landlord within Five (5) days of written notice from the Landlord in respect
thereof (provided that if the Landlord has given notice hereunder in Two (2) consecutive
months or on Four (4) separate occasions in any Twenty-Four (24) consecutive months, the
Landlord shall thereafter have no further obligation to give notice hereunder and an event of
Default shall be deemed to occur on the date the Tenant thereafter fails to pay Rent or any
other payment or reimbursement when due date as provided for in the Lease within such
Twenty-Four (24) month period); or

(b) the Tenant defaults or fails to observe or perform any of its non-financial obligations under
this Lease and the Tenant fails to rectify such Default within Fifteen (15) Business Days of
receipt of written notice from the Landlord with respect thereto (unless such failure is not
reasonably capable of being rectified within such Fifteen (15) Business Day period, in which
case the Tenant shall be in Default if it fails to commence rectifying the Default within such
Fifteen (15) Business Day period or fails to thereafter diligently pursue rectification to
completion); or

(c) the Tenant makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, becomes bankrupt or
insolvent, or takes the benefit of or becomes subject to any statute that may be in force
relating to bankrupt or insolvent debtors; or

(d) any creditor seizes or takes control of the Tenant's property; or
(e) the Tenant abandons or threatens to abandon the Leased Premises;

with subsections (a) through (e) above constituting an event of default (a “Default”), the Landlord,
immediately and without prior notice being required, and without in any way restricting any of its
other rights or remedies:

) in the event of a Default pursuant to subsections (a), (b) or (e), may claim the
Tenant's Security Deposit to be applied to remedy any potential damages associated
with the Default and may invoice the Tenant to top-up the Security Deposit to the
appropriate sum according to the Lease;

(i) in the event of a Default pursuant to subsections (c) or (d), may retain the Security
Deposit and advance rent (if any) for its own use absolutely;

(iii) will be entitled to post notice to the door of the Leased Premises, change the locks,
re-enter the Leased Premises and/or terminate this Lease and re-enter into
possession of the Leased Premises;

(iv) will be entitled to do whatever the Tenant is obligated to do under this Lease and
enter the Leased Premises, without being liable for prosecution or any claim for
damages therefor, to accomplish such purpose. The Tenant shall reimburse the
Landlord immediately upon demand for any expenses which the Landlord incurs in
thus effecting compliance with this Lease on the Tenant's behalf, together with an
administration fee of Fifteen percent (15%); and

(v) may claim greater damages for breach of this Lease, in each of such cases without
limiting any other rights or remedies available to the Landlord.

In addition to payment of the then current Rent, and without prejudice to the Landlord’s right to claim
greater damages, the Rent for the next ensuing Three (3) months shall immediately become due and
payable and be deemed to be in arrears upon such Default, general assignment, bankruptcy,
insolvency or other event of Default.

All costs incurred by the Landlord in consequence of any Default by the Tenant including, without
limitation, legal fees and disbursements on a solicitor and client full indemnity basis, shall be paid by
the Tenant.
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The Tenant waives all and every benefit that could or might have accrued to the Tenant under or by
virtue of any law or statute providing for an exemption from distress. The Landlord may, at the
Landlord’s option, sell such goods and chattels as are seized by levy of distress, by way of private
sale to the Landlord or any other party, provided that such right shall not extend to property that is
owned by third parties that is in the care, custody or control of Tenant or in the Leased Premises
(“Third Party Property”).

Distress may be levied against the goods and chattels of the Tenant (which for certainty excludes
Third Party Property) wheresoever situate, and upon any other premises to which the same may have
been removed, or wherever the same may be found. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence,
nothing in this Lease shall prohibit the Tenant from signing security agreements in favour of its lender,
from time to time, financing the Tenant’s equipment or inventory in connection with a financing of the
Tenant's business operations. The Landlord agrees that any lien it may have on the Tenant’s trade
fixtures, inventory, furnishings and equipment (which specifically excludes, inter alia, the racking, the
Security Deposit, or any Landlord’'s Work) located in the Leased Premises shall be subordinated to
institutional financing entered into by the Tenant, from time to time. The Landlord will execute
reasonable documentation to confirm such subordination, provided that any such subordination
confirms that the lender shall disclaim any interest in the racking, the Security Deposit and the
Landlord’s Work.

All rights and remedies of the Landlord in connection with the Lease are cumulative and, where
applicable, shall survive the early termination of this Lease or the expiration of the Term of this Lease.

All monies payable under this Lease shall be deemed to be Rent and collectible as such.

LANDLORD’S INSURANCE

The Landlord covenants and agrees to place and maintain, with respect to the Leased Premises:

(a) Replacement Cost Insurance on the Building and Leasehold Improvements comprising the
Leased Premises, subject to such deductions and exceptions as the Landlord may
determine;

(b) Rent Interruption Insurance in amounts such as would be carried by a prudent owner of

similar property;

(c) Commercial General Liability Insurance written on a comprehensive basis in an amount as
would be carried by a prudent owner of similar property; and

(d) Any and all other insurance required by the Landlord that a prudent owner of similar property
would carry, including Boiler and Machinery Insurance (if applicable).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Landlord shall not be required to acquire or maintain any insurance
with respect to any loss, injury, or damage against which the Tenant is required to insure pursuant to
this Lease.

Notwithstanding any contribution by the Tenant to the Landlord’s insurance placed pursuant to this
Lease, no insurable interest is conferred upon the Tenant under any policies carried by the Landlord.

For clarity, the Landlord shall not be obligated to insure: (i) any alterations or improvements
constructed and/or installed by the Tenant, (ii) trade fixtures, machinery, equipment, furniture, goods,
supplies, inventory and other property of the Tenant, or (iii) Third Party Property.

TENANT INSURANCE

During the Term of this Lease, the Tenant shall acquire and maintain Commercial General Liability
Insurance for not less than $5,000,000.00; All Risk Property Insurance, on a replacement cost basis
on all of the Tenant's trade fixtures and FFE (as defined in Section 14(d)); Business Interruption
Insurance; Tenant's Legal Liability Insurance (Broad Form); Boiler and Machinery Insurance (if
applicable); Environmental Damage Insurance.

The Tenant's policies of insurance set-out above shall contain the following:

(a) provisions that the Landlord is protected notwithstanding any act, neglect or
misrepresentation of the Tenant which might otherwise result in the avoidance of claim under
such policies, and further that such policies shall not be affected or invalidated by any act,
omission or negligence of any third party which is not within the knowledge or control of any
insured(s);

(b) provisions that such policies and the coverage evidenced thereby shall be primary and non-
contributing with respect to any policies carried by the Landlord, that any coverage carried
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by the Landlord may only be called upon on a difference in conditions or excess coverage
basis, and that any such Landlord coverage shall inure to the sole benefit of the Landlord;

(c) provisions that all of the Tenant's insurance as specified above shall provide for waiver of all
insurer's rights of subrogation as against the Landlord and the Landlord’s mortgagee and
shall name the Landlord and the Landlord’s mortgagee as an additional insured;

(d) provisions that all policies of insurance carried by the Tenant shall not be cancelled or
materially changed without the insurer or the Tenant providing the Landlord Thirty (30) days
written notice stating when such cancellation shall become effective.

The Tenant shall further during the whole of the Term, and any renewal thereof, maintain such other
insurance in such amounts and in such sums as a Tenant acting reasonably shall purchase, or as
the Landlord or the Landlord’s mortgagees may reasonably determine from time-to-time. Evidence
satisfactory to the Landlord of all such policies of insurance required to be obtained by the Tenant
pursuant to this section shall be provided to the Landlord prior to the commencement of the Term,
and the Tenant shall provide written evidence of the continuation of such policies not less than Ten
(10) Business Days prior to their respective expiration dates, and, in the absence of said satisfactory
evidence of such coverage being provided, the Landlord may, but will not be obligated to, provide for
the purchase of such insurance, the cost of which will be borne exclusively by the Tenant.

For certainty, in the event of any damage to the Building, or any part thereof, caused by the negligence
or wilful act of the Tenant or anyone for whom the Tenant is at law responsible, the Tenant's legal
liability insurance will be required to cover all costs relating to such damage. In the event that any
such damage exceeds the value of the Tenant's legal liability insurance coverage and the Landlord's
insurance is required to cover the balance, the Tenant will be responsible for paying the Landlord’s
insurance deductible(s) relating to such damage and any increase in the Landlord’s insurance
premiums relating to such damage.

INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE

(a) The Tenant hereby indemnifies and holds the Landlord harmless from and against any and
all claims, demands, liabilities, and expenses, including legal fees on a solicitor and client full
indemnity basis, arising from the Tenant's use of the Leased Premises or from any act
permitted, or any omission to act, in or about the Leased Premises by the Tenant or the
Tenant's agents, employees, contractors, invitees or those for whom it is responsible in law,
or from any breach or Default by the Tenant of this Lease, except to the extent caused by
the Landlord’s negligence or wilful misconduct. In the event that any action or proceeding
shall be brought against the Landlord by reason of any such claim, the Tenant shall defend
the same at the Tenant's sole expense by counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Landlord.

(b) The Landlord hereby indemnifies and holds the Tenant harmless from and against any and
all claims, demands, liabilities, and expenses, including legal fees on a solicitor and client full
indemnity basis, arising from the Landlord’s use of the Building or from any act permitted, or
any omission to act, in or about the Building by the Landlord or the Landlord’s agents,
employees, contractors, invitees or those for whom it is responsible in law, or from any breach
by the Landlord of this Lease, except to the extent caused by the Tenant's negligence or
wilful misconduct. In the event that any action or proceeding shall be brought against the
Tenant by reason of any such claim, the Landlord shall defend the same at the Landlord’'s
sole expense by counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Tenant.

(c) The Landlord and the Tenant each agree to release the other for any indirect or consequential
damages it may suffer, including, but not limited to, loss of profit.

MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, ALTERATIONS, AND RESTORATION

(a) The Tenant will keep the Leased Premises (which will include, but are not limited to, all
fixtures, equipment, furnishings, improvements, windows and exterior entrances) in good and
substantial repair, order and in a first-class condition, and will at all times complete all
necessary replacements, repairs, and maintenance in relation to all items that are included
as Tenant Obligations in Schedule “C-1". The Tenant will immediately notify the Landlord of
(iy any damage to, or defect in, the, fixtures, building systems/utilities serving the Leased
Premises, or (ii) any damage to the Leased Premises (including, but not limited to, the
structural elements and roof of the Building), or (iii) any outstanding item listed as a Landlord
Obligation on Schedule “C-1". The Tenant will be responsible for all costs and expenses to
repair damage caused or repairs necessitated to any part of the Property by the Tenant or a
Tenant Party, reasonable wear and tear excepted.

(b) The Landlord will perform the maintenance and repair obligations that are listed as Landlord
Obligations on Schedule “C-1". The Tenant will permit the Landlord and its agents or
employees at any time, and on reasonable notice, to enter the Leased Premises for purposes
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of repair, renovation or maintenance, which are the responsibility of the Landlord or can be
completed by the Landlord, at its option, pursuant to the terms of this Lease.

If the Landlord determines, acting reasonably, that the Tenant is not adequately maintaining
the Leased Premises in accordance with the provision set-out above or anywhere else in this
Lease, then the Landlord may give the Tenant written notice of its intention to attend to such
maintenance or repairs as necessary, and upon completion of such maintenance or repairs,
the Tenant shall pay the Landlord’s cost incurred plus Fifteen percent (15%) of the Landlord’s
costs for overhead and supervision, all as Additional Rent.

All Landlord’s Work and leasehold improvements when installed, whether installed before or
after the Tenant takes possession of the Leased Premises, in or on the Leased Premises
become the property of the Landlord, without compensation to the Tenant. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, and notwithstanding that the Landlord insures the leasehold improvements
referenced in Section 11, with the exception of any items specifically listed as Landiord
Obligations in Schedule “C-1”, the Tenant shall be exclusively responsible for the repair,
replacement, operation, and maintenance of the leasehold improvements.

Unless the Landlord specifically requires the Tenant to remove, the Tenant shall not remove
any leasehold improvements from the Leased Premises. At the end of the Term, or any
renewal thereof, the Tenant will, at its expense, remove the leasehold improvements that the
Landlord has specifically required the Tenant to remove. The Tenant shall make good any
damage caused to the Leased Premises by such installation or removal of the leasehold
improvements, and the Tenant shall restore the Leased Premises to a condition of good and
substantial repair. At the end of the Term, or any renewal thereof, the Tenant will, at its
expense, remove all furniture, furnishings, non-attached equipment (the “FFE”), and trade
fixtures and make good any damage caused to the Leased Premises by such installation or
removal, and restore the Leased Premises to a condition of good and substantial repair,
reasonable wear and tear accepted. If the Tenant does not remove any leasehold
improvements, as required by the Landlord, or remove its FFE, the Landlord may, without
liability on its part, without notice to the Tenant, enter the Leased Premises and remove such
items at the Tenant's expense, plus an administration charge of Fifteen percent (15%) of
such amount, to be paid as Additional Rent. For certainty, the Tenant shall not remove, or
be responsible for the removal of, the racking, refrigeration at the end of the Term, or any
renewal thereof.

At its sole cost, the Tenant shall undertake and complete all necessary repairs or
replacements required to the Leased Premises as a result of damage occasioned to the
Leased Premises by virtue of any break-in or attempted break-in to the Leased Premises.

The Tenant will not make any renovations, alterations, replacements or improvements to any
part of the Leased Premises without first obtaining the Landlord's prior written approval.

SIGNAGE

The Tenant shall not erect, affix, install or maintain any signs, lettering, identification or any
promotional or other written materials on the exterior of the Leased Premises, or within the Leased
Premises if visible from the exterior of the Leased Premises (the “Signage”), without the prior written
approval of the Landlord, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, and such Signage must
comply with building standards and with all municipal requirements. The Tenant shall be solely
responsible for maintaining and repairing the Sighage and for making good any such damage
caused by the removal of the Signage at the expiry or earlier termination of this Lease.

REGISTRATION AND ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

(@)

(b)

The Tenant shall have the right to register a caveat respecting this Lease but not disclosing
the Rent or other monetary provisions in the appropriate Land Titles Office but shall not be
entitled to file or register this Lease. Prior to registration of the Caveat, the Tenant shall
provide the Landlord with a copy of the caveat being submitted for registration and following
registration, the Tenant shall forthwith upon the request of the Landlord execute and deliver
to the Landlord such partial discharges, postponements and consents to plans as may be
requested by the Landlord from time-to-time.

If requested by the Landlord, the Tenant will sign, within Five (5) Business Days of a request
to do so by the Landlord an estoppel certificate (the “Tenant’s Estoppel Certificate”) in the
form, or similar form, as set forth in Schedule “B” as may be amended to reflect the then
current status of this Lease.

The Tenant shall not under any circumstances permit any lien, writ, caveat, encumbrance or
other charge (except for a lease caveat as set-out in Section 16(a) above) to be filed against
the title to the Leased Premises or the Lands and in the event of the filing of such lien, writ,
caveat, encumbrance or other charge, the Tenant shall forthwith, at the Tenant's sole cost

8
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and expense, cause the same to be discharged from the title at the land titles office
immediately upon demand to do so by the Landlord.

ALTERATIONS TO LEASED PREMISES

Save for the Landlord's Work (defined and described in Schedule "D’ herein), the Tenant
acknowledges that the Leased Premises are accepted “as-is, where-is” and all improvements are the
responsibility of the Tenant.

SUBORDINATION

This Lease (and any caveat which Tenant may file pursuant to Section 16(a) hereof relating thereto)
shall be subordinate to every mortgage that now or at any time affects the Leased Premises. Prior
to the Commencement Date (and thereafter, following a request from the Tenant), the Landlord will
use reasonable commercial efforts to provide from the Landlord’s mortgagee(s) registered in priority
to any Tenant caveat non-disturbance agreement(s) (in the standard form required by the
mortgagee(s)) in favour of the Tenant confirming that the Tenant’s rights pursuant to this Lease will
be honoured, providing the Tenant is not in Default under the terms of this Lease. The Tenant shall
be responsible for any legal fees and disbursements incurred by Landlord, respecting such non-
disturbance agreement(s).

ASSIGNMENT

Neither this Lease, nor the Leased Premises, nor control or shares of the Tenant (if a corporation)
shall be assigned, transferred, sublet or changed, nor shall anyone other than the Tenant be permitted
to occupy the Leased Premises, in whole or in part, by any means whatsoever including, without
limitation, operation of law (each of which act is hereinafter referred to as a “Transfer”), without the
Landlord’s prior written consent/approval, such consent/approval not to be unreasonably withheld.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Tenant will not require the Landlord’s consent to a Transfer in the
following circumstances:

(a) an assignment of this Lease or a subletting of the whole of the Leased Premises to a parent,
subsidiary, or affiliate of the Tenant; or

(b) an assignment, sublet or transfer in connection with a merger, reorganization, or sale of a
majority of the assets or share stock of Tenant or Tenant’s parent company

(hereinafter, collectively a “Pre-Approved Transfer”).

Prior to affecting any Pre-Approved Transfer, the Tenant shall provide the Landlord with at least
Fourteen (14) Business Days prior written notice of the proposed Pre-Approved Transfer as well as
the name of the name of the transferee.

In the event of an approved Transfer or Pre-Approved Transfer by which the Tenant receives a rent
in the form of cash, goods or services from the transferee, which is greater than the Rent payable
hereunder to the Landlord, the Tenant will pay any such excess to the Landlord in addition to all Rent
payable under this Lease, and such excess Rent shall be deemed to be further Rent payable
hereunder.

In the event of an approved Transfer or Pre-Approved Transfer, the Tenant shall not be relieved of
any obligation under this Lease. Any attempted Transfer by the Tenant in violation of the terms and
covenants of this section shall be void. The Tenant and the transferee shall execute all documents
and acknowledgments in such form and content as may be required by the Landlord in relation to any
approved Transfer or Pre-Approved Transfer. The Tenant shall be responsible for all of the expenses
incurred by the Landlord in connection with the Landlord’s review of any request for consent to a
Transfer.

UNAVOIDABLE DELAY

In the event the Landlord or Tenant is bona fide delayed in performance of its obligations hereunder
(other than the payment of any sum of money when due) by reason of causes beyond its control (the
“Unavoidable Delay”), the time for performance shall be extended accordingly. If the Landlord has
any obligation to complete Tenant improvements, it shall not be responsible for any delay in
construction due to Unavoidable Delay. Unavoidable Delay will not entitle either the Landlord or
Tenant to any compensation for any inconvenience, nuisance or discomfort thereby occasioned or
permit either of them to cancel or terminate this Lease (unless a separate right of termination is
otherwise expressly set forth elsewhere in this Lease), nor shall the Tenant be entitled to any
abatement of Rent (unless a separate right of abatement is otherwise expressly set forth elsewhere
in this Lease).
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ENVIRONMENTAL WARRANTY

For the purposes of this Section, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(a) “Environmental Laws” means all applicable federal, provincial, municipal and local laws,
statutes, ordinances, by-laws and regulations and all orders, directives and decisions
rendered by, and policies, guidelines and similar guidance of, any ministry, department or
administrative or regulatory agency, authority, tribunal or court (in each case having the
force of law), including any obligations or requirements arising under common law, relating
to the protection of the environment, human health and safety or the manufacture,
processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, presence, disposal, packaging, labeling,
recycling, transport, handling, containment, clean-up or other remediation or corrective
action of or in respect of any hazardous substances.

(b) “Pollutants” means any explosives, radiocactive materials, asbestos materials, urea
formaldehyde insulation, chlorobiphenyls (PCB’s), hydrocarbon contaminants,
underground or above ground tanks, pollutants, contaminants, dangerous goods,
hazardous, corrosive or toxic substances, special waste or waste of any kind, or any other
substance the sale, storage, manufacture, disposal, handling, treatment, generation, use,
transport, remediation or release into or presence in the environment is now or hereafter
prohibited, controlled or regulated under any Environmental Laws.

The Tenant is liable to the Landlord for the release of any Pollutants which were caused by the
Tenant or anyone for whom the Tenant is at law responsible either prior to, on, or following the
commencement of the Term which occurs on the Leased Premises and or the Property, and which
might impair the quality of air, land or water, affect human health, or damage any plant, animal life,
land, building or structure or which is otherwise in contravention of any Environmental Law. The
Tenant covenants and agrees to ensure that all uses and activities on the Leased Premises are in
compliance with all current and all future federal, provincial, and municipal laws and regulations
(including, without limitation, all Environmental Laws), and/or any permits or authorizations granted
thereunder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Tenant shall ensure compliance
with all Environmental Laws. Any breaches of any Environmental Laws, past, present, or future,
and any breaches of the Tenant’s covenants herein, shall be resolved expeditiously by the Tenant
to the Landlord’s satisfaction. If the Tenant fails to resolve such breaches to the Landlord’s
satisfaction, the Landlord may rectify such breaches in its sole option. All expenses incurred by
the Landlord, including legal expenses on a solicitor and client full indemnity basis and the costs of
environmental tests, audits, reviews, remediation, and an administration fee in the amount of
Fifteen percent (15%) of the aggregate of all such costs, shall be paid by the Tenant forthwith on
demand and shall be collectible by the Landlord from the Tenant as Additional Rent. Exceptin the
event of an emergency, either real or perceived, it is understood and agreed that upon the provision
of reasonable, prior written notice to the Tenant, the Landlord and/or its agent(s), including
consultants, have the ongoing right to enter upon the Leased Premises, from time-to-time, so that
it may carry out such environmental tests, audits and reviews as the Landlord considers necessary.

The Tenant shall promptly notify the Landlord in writing of any release of any Pollutants or any other
occurrence or condition at the Leased Premises which could contaminate the Leased Premises,
adjacent properties, waterways or roads or subject the Landlord or the Tenant to any fines, penalties,
orders, investigations, or proceedings under any Environmental Laws.

On the expiry or earlier termination of this Lease or at any time if required by any governmental
authority pursuant to any Environmental Laws, the Tenant shall remove from the Leased Premises
all Pollutants released by the Tenant or any person for whom the Tenant is responsible for at law
before or after the commencement of the Term, and the Tenant shall remediate any contamination
of the Leased Premises or any adjacent properties, waterways or roads resulting from Pollutants,
in either case, brought onto, used or released from the Leased Premises by the Tenant or any
person for whom it is in law responsible before the commencement of the Term or during the Term
of this Lease. The Tenant shall use a qualified environmental consultant to perform the
remediation. The Tenant shall, at its own cost, obtain such approvals and certificates in respect of
the remediation as are required under all Environmental Laws to evidence completion of the
remediation satisfactory to the applicable governmental authority having jurisdiction. All such
Pollutants shall remain the property of the Tenant, notwithstanding any rule of law or other provision
of this Lease to the contrary and notwithstanding the degree of their affixation to the Leased
Premises.

The Tenant shall indemnify the Landlord and its directors, officers, shareholders, employees, agents,
successors and assigns, from any and all liabilities, actions, damages, claims, remediation, cost
recovery claims, losses, costs, orders, fines, penalties and expenses whatsoever (including all
consulting and legal costs on a solicitor and client full indemnity basis and the cost of remediation of
the Leased Premises and any adjacent properties, waterways and roads) arising from or in
connection with any breach or non-compliance by the Tenant with the provisions in this Section 21.
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22,

23.

The obligation of the Tenant to undertake clean-ups, to make repairs, obtain approvals and
certificates, indemnify the Landlord or otherwise comply with the obligations under this Section 21
shall survive the expiry or earlier termination of this Lease.

NOTICE

All notices which may be given under the provisicns of this Agreement will be in writing (a “Notice”),
given pursuant to the Lease must be delivered by hand or email to the Landlord at the address set-
out on page 1 of the Lease, and to the Tenant at the Leased Premises or the address set-out on
page 1 of the Lease, or to such other address or email as the parties may direct in writing. Notice
will be deemed to have been received immediately when hand delivered or transmitted via email,
or if mailed, upon the Fifth (5") Business Day following the date the Notice is mailed. For the
purposes of this Lease, a “Business Day” shall mean any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or
provincial statutory holiday in the Province of Alberta.

DESTRUCTION

(a) If all or any material part of the Leased Premises is rendered untenantable or completely
inaccessible by damage from fire or other casualty to the Building, then:

if in the reasonable opinion of the Landlord, after completion of an investigation by
the Landlord’s insurance adjuster or fire inspectors, as the case may be, the
damage affects the useability of less than 50% of the Floor Area of the Leased
Premises,

1. if such damage occurs at any time prior to the last two years of the Term
(or an Extension Term, as the case may be), (a)the Landlord shall
forthwith repair such damage and restore the Base Building Improvements
and Leasehold Improvements to a condition similar to the condition of the
Leased Premises were in immediately prior to the date of destruction
(provided, however, that the Landlord shall only be required to restore
items that were part of Landlord’'s Work and the Landlord shall not be
required to restore or replace any improvements, alterations or
betterments within the Leased Premises installed by the Tenant, or any
furniture, equipment, trade fixtures or personal property of Tenant or any
Third Party Property) and (b) the Tenant shall be responsible to repair and
restore all the any improvements, alterations or betterments within the
Leased Premises installed by the Tenant to the condition they existed at
the time of such destruction and to repair and restore all of the Tenant’s
trade fixtures, FFE, decorations or any other work done by the Tenant in
the Leased Premises;

2. if such damage occurs at during the last two years of the Term (or an
Extension Term, as the case may be), and cannot be substantially
repaired within 180 days from the later of the date of completion of such
investigation and release of possession of the entire Leased Premises by
any fire inspectors or insurance adjustors (employing normal construction
methods without overtime or other premium), then:

a. the Landlord may elect to terminate this Lease as of the date of
such casualty by Notice delivered to the Tenant not more than
Twenty (20) Business Days after such casualty; and

b. the Tenant may elect to terminate this Lease as of the date of such
casualty by Notice delivered to Landlord not more than Twenty
(20) Business Days after such casualty,

failing which the Landlord and Tenant shall forthwith repair such damage
in accordance with Section 23(a)(i)(1);

ii. if in the reasonable opinion of the Landlord, after completion of an investigation by
the Landlord’s insurance adjuster or fire inspectors, as the case may be, the
damage affects the useability of 50% or more of the Floor Area of the Leased
Premises,

1. ifsuch damage can be substantially repaired within 365 days from the later
of the date of completion of such investigation and release of possession
of the entire Leased Premises by any fire inspectors or insurance adjustors
(employing normal construction methods without overtime or other
premium), (a) the Landlord shall forthwith repair such damage and restore
the Base Building Improvements and Leasehold Improvements to a
condition similar to the condition of the Leased Premises were in
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immediately prior to the date of destruction (provided, however, that the
Landlord shall only be required to restore items that were part of
Landlord’'s Work and the Landlord shall not be required to restore or
replace any improvements, alterations or betterments within the Leased
Premises installed by the Tenant, or any furniture, equipment, trade
fixtures or personal property of Tenant or any Third Party Property) and
(b) the Tenant shall be responsible to repair and restore all the any
improvements, alterations or betterments within the Leased Premises
installed by the Tenant to the condition they existed at the time of such
destruction and to repair and restore all of the Tenant's trade fixtures, FFE,
decorations or any other work done by the Tenant in the Leased Premises

2. if such damage cannot be substantially repaired within 365 days from the
later of the date of completion of such investigation and release of
possession of the entire Leased Premises by any fire inspectors or
insurance adjustors (employing normal construction methods without
overtime or other premium), then:

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

failing all or either of which, the Landlord and Tenant shall forthwith repair
such damage in accordance with Section 23(a)(ii)(1).

If the Landlord is required to repair damage to the Leased Premises under Section 23 the
Basic Rent payable by the Tenant shall be proportionately reduced to the extent that the
Leased Premises are rendered untenantable or inaccessible, from the date of the casualty
until Thirty (30) days after completion by the Landlord of the repairs to the Leased Premises
or until the Tenant again uses the Leased Premises (or the part thereof rendered
untenantable), whichever first occurs. The Tenant shall effect its own repairs as soon as
possible after completion of the Landlord’s repairs. Notwithstanding the foregoing, there
shall be no abatement or reduction of Basic Rent where the Landlord’s repairs to the
Leased Premises take less than Ten (10) days to complete after the damage occurs.

Notwithstanding anything else contained in this Lease, if (i) the proceeds of insurance are
substantially insufficient to pay for the costs of repair or rebuilding or are not payable to or
received by the Landlord; (ii) damage or destruction is caused by an occurrence against
which the Landlord is not insured or beyond the extent to which the Landlord is required to
insure under this Lease; or (iii) any Mortgagee(s) or other Person entitled to the insurance
proceeds shall not consent to the repair and rebuilding, then the Landlord may terminate
this Lease by giving to the Tenant Notice of such termination within Sixty (60) days of the
damage or destruction, in which event the Term shall cease and be at an end as of the
date of such damage or destruction and the Rent and all other payments for which the
Tenant is liable under the terms of this Lease shall be apportioned and paid in full to the
date of termination. In the event the Lease is termin